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CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (gavel). . . Good morning, everyone.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now in session. Today
is March 30 th , 2009, and the time is 9:05. At this time the Chair would like to introduce
the Committee Members that are present this morning. We do have Member Baisa,
Member Kaho' ohalahala -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Member Medeiros -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Member Nishiki -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Member Mateo -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Good morning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good morning, everyone. Joining us later are Members Molina, as
well as Member Johnson. Chair would like to introduce the Committee Staff. We do
have Gayle Revels, Ms. Gayle Revels as well as Yvette Bouthillier And upfront and
discussing their 2010 proposal will be our Budget Director, Mr. Fred Pablo, and we do
have the Department of Planning representative, Mr. Jeff Hunt who is the Director, as
well as Kathleen Aoki who is the Deputy Director of Planning. And from the
Corporation Counsel, we do have the First Deputy Traci Fujita Villarosa. Members, we
do have one person signed up for public testimony at this time. And for the person that's
giving public testimony this morning, you know, you have three minutes to provide
public testimony, and if you can state your name and organization that you represent, the
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Chair would appreciate that. But before you give your public testimony, the Chair would
like to remind everyone in this Chambers to put your cell phone on the silent mode or
turn it, turn it off.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . . The first and only person signed up for public testimony is Jocelyn Perreira.
NOTE: Pause while Ms. Perreira approached the podium..

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

MS. PERREIRA: . . . Good morning, Chair Pontanilla. Honorable Council Members, good
morning.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Good morning.
MS. PERREIRA: My name is Jocelyn Perreira. I'm the Executive Director of the Wailuku
Main Street Association, Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center. I'm here today to testify
on behalf of our chairman of the board and respective members of the board. Aloha. On
behalf of the Wailuku Main Street Association, Tri-Isle Resource Center, we thank you
for your support of small towns in Maui County and the work of our organization over
the past 20 years. The Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center maintains affiliations with
Wailuku, Paia, Makawao, Haiku, Lanai City, and other towns that are requesting
assistance, anytime they have requested assistance. For Fiscal Year '10, the Main Street
Resource Center requests an appropriation of $270,000. This represents no increase from
last year. Our request comes at a time when Main Street is faced with increased costs for
rent, insurance, and professional consultant services for important community-based
projects undertaken to implement the community plans. In recent years, the Main Street
Resource Center has been assisting our small town affiliates in providing input into the
important General Plan update process. We will continue this effort until adoption of the
plan to ensure consideration of needs of our small towns. The General Plan and
community plans have major implications for small towns, because these plans provide a
basis for actions relating to the budget, land use entitlements, Capital Improvement
Programs, and other County decision-making. Efforts to preserve and revitalize our
small towns are a sound investment in the community's future. Our staff and community
and professional volunteers are committed to the preservation and revitalization of Maui
County's small towns. We respectfully request your continued support in funding for the
270,000 to enable our organization to continue on its important mission. I, we prepared a
packet for you all, and in it you will see the grant proposal that is similar to the one that,
in format it's similar to the one that was requested last year. And it also has charts and
graphs that show you the pro rata portion for the small towns. The next section notes the
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accomplishments of the small towns. The next section is letters requesting support along
with, each town also included their Capital Improvement Project and program requests.
The next section is. . .for reporting and the last is our website which is needing to be
upgraded which we expect to do this year and. . .our promotion piece for the Small
Towns that was shown in the Guardian. Thank you for this opportunity to provide
testimony on behalf of our organization. I do believe that you were met or will be met, if
you haven't yet, by our small town, town chairs -MS. REVELS: Three minutes.
MS. PERREIRA: --in each respective town. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes. Thank you very much, Chair. And thank you,
Ms. Perreira, for being here this morning. I hope that you have rested up a little bit since
the end of the General Plan . . . (laughter). . . I know you were there until the bitter end,
and I thank you very much for all the input that you provided during that process. But I
wanted to ask you, I haven't had time to check your request against the Mayor's Budget.
Did you get a recommended, for the amount you asked for or is it reduced?
MS. PERREIRA: It's reduced by 10 percent which is equivalent of $27,000. I just want to
remind the Council that last year we had to come back and ask you folks to make sure
that we got enough funding so that we could pay for our rent, our rental costs and there,
thereby, I mean, has tripled, you know, as you know, and that's why.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So...
MS. PERREIRA: But no -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So was it-MS. PERREIRA: --no increase this year.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So with the reduction of $27,000, what does that mean to your
organization?
MS. PERREIRA: It does hurt the program, the, the special, special projects in each of the small
towns. We're unable to do as many as we have in the past. It'll be a reduction on that, in
that level.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One last question. How does your organization and what you do
interact or interface with the Planning Department?
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MS. PERREIRA: I would say we interact and interface quite a bit with the Planning
Department. We're really allies to the Planning Department. We, we augment their
services. We are not Planning Department consultants. We are a grant-in-aid,
fee-for-service, as you know. But, so we may, we may not achieve 100 percent of their
goals but there's definitely a relationship to their goals. We advocate for and our
direction and our requests come from the small towns themselves because we are small
town advocates. We advocate for the small towns. The Planning Department, when
we're working on projects, can come to rely on our professional expertise that is rendered
by our team of professionals when they're doing project reviews, so on and so forth. It
allows the Planning Department to have access to the services of architects, engineers, so
on, planners, so on and so forth. So I think it really is, it, we enhance each other.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Well, I think that's very important. You know, we're in a tight
budget this year and the value of your organization is very important that everyone
understand why you've been funded so many years and the value you bring to the table.
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: So thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions for the testifier?
Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good morning, Jocelyn.
MS. PERREIRA: Good morning, Council, Councilmember Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I was looking at your grant, on the grant proposal, the second
page after your organization. . .under Budgeted Expenditures.
MS. PERREIRA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Your Salaries and Wages is $166,948.
MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It seems to be more than -MS. PERREIRA: Those are for...
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --

percent of what your total budget request is.

MS. PERREIRA: Those are for four staffers, Councilmember Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How many?
MS. PERREIRA: Four.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.
MS. PERREIRA: And these, these staff are support to the committees and the boards and the
projects. So it's pro rated with all the projects and the, the support for the towns and the
projects.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . And then your 73,000 for Contractual.
MS. PERREIRA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What is your, where is your rent located?
MS. PERREIRA: It's under Contractual.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, it's under that?
MS. PERREIRA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . And the contractual part of your budget goes to do what?
MS. PERREIRA: A variety of things. Anything that we have as, as a contract. It could be even
a contract for a copier or it could be, if we have a small town project. For instance we
have a project right now that we're doing in Paia and we're hire, and we've hired a
surveyor. So it would go for that surveyor to do a topographical map, so on and so forth.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And, and under your Wages for your staff, what type of
people are in there? You have any planners or architects?
MS. PERREIRA: They're, they're extremely qualified. We have two, we have accountants,
one, one, one bookkeeper, one accountant, office manager, an assistant, and myself. So
they're all very qualified and professionals in, in this kind of. . .program persuasion.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And good morning, Ms. Perreira.
MS. PERREIRA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for being here bright and early.
MS. PERREIRA: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I just wanted to know if you have a status report or an
inventory of commercial spaces in small towns? As, as I drive through different areas, I
see a lot of commercial space for rent.
MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What, what is the status, is there a lot of commercial space
out there empty?
MS. PERREIRA: Thank you for that question. Every year at the end of the year, part of the
comprehensive report, we have business directories which is very comprehensive. It
shows the, not only the retail but the professionals in the towns themselves. So like for
instance sometimes you may have merchants that sign a petition or something and they
are like 30 people or whatever. But in actuality, like in Makawao, there's nearly
100 businesses, just to give you an example. And Paia has like 80 instead of like just
only 30 retail. The status is, of these small towns, is they're hanging in there, they really
are. We do have what I call musical chairs from time to time whereby they are electing
to, you know, look at another, another space in the town or, but they're staying in the
town. Either they need expansion or they're looking at something that's more affordable
or they're downsizing, or what have you. And, you know, it's a struggle. They are eking
a meager living. That's why they need every bit of support that we can give them. But,
you know, the sky is not falling at this point with our small towns. Frankly, because they
are small towns and because they are so much a piece, a living history you might, you
may, you might say, of our communities they're an attraction. They're an important
stool, a leg, in the economic pie for the, for Maui County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, Ms. Perreira, is there a sense that commercial space,
whether it be retail or professional organizations, that the rent is, and because of the
economic times. . .do we see a rent reduction currently?
MS. PERREIRA: Not really yet. There might be one coming down the road, but we, that's not
what we've seen. Because again in the case of the small towns, even though you see an
empty storefront what most people don't realize is that there are negotiations going on
7
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behind the scenes that, that we're working through getting them into the vacant space.
So.. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. And that was going to be my follow-up question.
Does your organization or a business association organization meet with property owners
that have commercial space -MS. PERREIRA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --to negotiate a better rent or lease?
MS. PERREIRA: We meet with landowners, business owners, residents, you name it. It is not
our function to negotiate their lease. We do send them to appropriate, qualified resources
that can help them with that, people who are into dealing with rents and, and property
management, and they get the best kind of help there. We do try to facilitate them every
step of the way, but we don't do that ourselves, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. And I'm sure, you know, in the, in doing that we're
helping small businesses, you know, stay afloat, so to speak.
MS. PERREIRA: That's true.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But thank you, Ms. Perreira, for your presence this
morning, for the information you have provided.
MS. PERREIRA: You're very welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Members, any more questions for the
Ms. Perreira? Seeing none, thank you again for your testimony.
MS. PERREIRA: And thanks to all of you for your. . .die-hard support. It is sincerely
appreciated from each and every one of our small towns. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Is there anyone out in the audience that want to provide
public testimony at this time?
. . . Seeing none coming forward, Members, if there's no objections, the Chair would like
to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before we go into the Planning Department, I just want to remind all
of you, as well as the viewing public, that on Friday we do have House Bill 1744 that's
going to be on the agenda at the State Capital. And what it means to this County is that
our transient accommodation tax will be, in fact the transient accommodation tax for all
of the Counties would be a big issue in regards to all of us. For Maui County, it's in the
tune of $18 million. So I would ask that, you know, each and every one of you support
the, the defeat of HB 1744 by calling your Senators, our State Senators as well as our
State Representatives. It is very important that we let them know that by taking away
$18 million, you know, it's going to impact not only the County services but services that
are, we support. . .which the State, you know, have. . .jurisdiction over here in Maui
County. And, and it's a lot of, it's a lot of money that we're looking at. And, Members,
you know, as we go forward, the Chair is during, doing a proposal should that happen,
the reduction of $18 million. So I, I know that, you know, the non-profits as well as our
departments will be impacted, by how much is the thing. Again, you know, if we can
have the public as well as all of us as sitting Members contact our Representatives as well
as our Senators to defeat House Bill 1744. It is very important for us. Thank you.
ITEM NO. 1: PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010 FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI (CC 09-59)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we're going to be reviewing the Budget for Fiscal Year
2010 for the Department of Planning. And, Members, you can fmd information on the
proposed bill, Page 9, and on the Program Budget starting on Page 16-1, and on the
Budget Details Page 14-1. At this time, the Chair would like to call on the Budget
Director to provide us with some information or some comments regarding this year's
proposal from the Planning Department. Thank you. Mr. Pablo?
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. And good morning, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER

: Good morning.

MR. PABLO: You have a handout which, which the Budget staff prepared regarding the
Planning Department. It's a two-page handout and it summarizes the major categories of,
of expenditures which we refer to as A) Salaries and Wages, B) Operations, and
C) Equipment. The Planning Department has one program and it, and this program, the
Planning program is funded entirely out of the General Funds. As you can see from the
summary of the Salaries, Wages, Operations, and Equipment, the Department is taking a
decrease from Fiscal Year 2009. This is pretty similar to all of the General Funds. They
have been asked to, to cut their budgets from 2010, bring it to a level close to 2009. In
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the Salaries and Wages, there's hardly any increase. As you know the department
directors and deputy directors are not taking any increase in salaries for Fiscal Year 2010.
In the Operations sector, you'll see that the Budget has gone down from 2 2 million, I
mean 2.4 million to 2.2, roughly a $200,000 decrease, a little over 8 percent. And in
Equipment area, there's no request for new equipment except for furnishings for an, for
an office and the continuation of the lease. There's no request for additional personnel,
the EP count stays at the authorized level of 55.2 percent [sic]. And in the Operations
section, you can see that there's quite a bit of decreases, especially in studies which were
done in Fiscal Year 2009. What we have shown here in the Operation section, is any
increase or decrease of $5,000 or more as compared to the 2009 Budget. On the back
page, you'll see the summary for equipment changes over Fiscal Year 2009. With that as
an overview, I'll hand it over to the Department Director Jeffery Eng [sic] and Deputy
Director Kathleen Aoki. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Uh -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Hunt.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Mr. Hunt, comments?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. PABLO: Jeffrey Hunt.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Hunt . . .(laughter). . .
MR. HUNT: Thank you, Fred.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Inaudible).. .
MR. HUNT: . . . I thought I'd give a, an overview of the Department's program, not just dollars
and cents, but what we actually accomplish. The budget before you is an austere budget.
We were directed to cut our budget by approximately 10 percent. But there's a lot of
information in this budget besides numbers. One of the changes this year is we added a
mission statement. The previous mission statement spoke to something about having the
best Planning Department in the State which is a noble goal, but we didn't think it
reflected what the Planning Department really accomplishes for our community. So we
have added a mission statement. We will probably revise that in the future with a little
bit more staff input. I believe the exercise of actually reviewing the mission statement is
beneficial to our staff. It gets a little buy-in from them. It helps staff see the bigger
picture and not just focusing on their own jobs. The objectives in the budget also speak
-
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to some specifics. One of the objectives is to provide the General Plan update to the
Council. We intend to do that and I'll speak to that a little bit more in the future. We
also, one of the objectives is improving customer service, providing prompt service,
streamlined permitting. And finally, one of the objectives is to have a fair and effective
enforcement of our community laws. As Fred noted, generally speaking the only change
in this year's budget is in Operations. Most of our special projects or a lot of our special
projects have been cut back. We're down 192,000 and we, we cut a lot of our special
projects and funding, and it's across the board. It wasn't just with the Tri-Isle, it was also
like for instance the Wailuku Main Street, I mean Wailuku Redevelopment
Association [sic], they also got a cut. So every, everyone's feeling a little bit of a cut in
this budget. A little bit of background for you folks, just to give you an idea of how the
Department operates. There's four Divisions. There's the Administration Division
which provides leadership and coordination, and, and provides legislation for adoption.
There's a Long Range Division which prepares master plans for adoption. There's a
Current Division which reviews complex development proposals. And then there's the
Zoning, Administration and Enforcement which deals with routine zoning inquiries and
building permit review and enforcement. We do have a number of pending bills that
we hope to get approved in the next year. There's an Interim District bill that we're
working on which would add development standards and bed and breakfast to the Interim
District. We're trying to work on the defmition of the home occupations. The
Department has suggested revisions to liberalize the defmition regarding visitors and
deliveries and workers, at the same time adding protections for the neighbors. We're
working on a service business residential bill which would allow commercial uses in
residential buildings. This would be particular for Hana; however, it could be designated
in other places. We're working on a smart growth bill which would allow residences
above commercial uses. And we're also looking at alternative energy sites, seeing if we
can expedite the permitting for those, see if we can get them permitted without going
through lengthy public hearings. There's also a bill that we're working on regarding
parking regulations and Residential zoning and Agricultural zoning, including
agricultural subdivisions. And fmally we're working on a bill that would explore
requiring LEED requirements for government buildings. LEED is the green building
requirements. In terms of streamlining, again this is part of our mission statement and a
budget objective. We often hear two opposing forces coming at us regarding
streamlining. Many people speak to having a more streamlined permitting process. At
the same time, we also hear a lot of requests for a more thorough review of development
proposals, people asking for more information from the developers. An example is the
General Plan update, the Countywide Policy Plan. I went through that and estimate, I
estimate there's 600 policies in that document alone. The Maui Island Plan, I estimate
there's 900 policies in that document. So between the two of them, a development
review conceivably could have to be reviewed against 1,500 policies. It's ironic that two
of those policies speak to streamlining the permitting process itself, but nonetheless it's,
it's an issue that, that again we hear, we hear both sides of the argument. We're trying to
focus on streamlining for simpler, lower-impact projects which would free up time for the
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larger impacts, larger developments to be reviewed with more of a thorough analysis.
There's several methods that we have implemented and we hope to continue to
implement regarding streamlining. One is, is through legislation we can change our
existing laws. The B&B permit, pardon me, the B&B law which was recently adopted
that provides for administrative approval, that, that's an example. We've also worked on
exemptions for simpler permits. We've expanded our list of exemptions that require or
that don't require an EA or an environmental assessment. We've also asked that bodies
delegate down their approval. The Planning Commission recently adopted rules that
allows time extensions to be reviewed by the Administration. We're working with
agencies to have standardized responses just be part of their response and not transmit out
to them. For instance the Fire Department and the Real Property Tax have agreed to this.
Another way to streamline is to add staff. And we didn't request any this year because of
the economy, but we have used overtime to reduce our backlog of permits. And it's, the
backlog refers to the amount of time that it takes to even get to the permit to review it.
The backlog has been reduced from six months down to 21 days for commercial permits
and it's approximately 15 days now for residential permits. There's other efficiencies
that we've enacted, including a dual permitting review process where the simple permits
are going in one process and the complex permits go in another so that the simple ones
aren't caught behind the complex ones. There's another option that some people
argue--and that's that we should prioritize some permits; however, this is difficult for us
because we feel every permit, everyone feels their permit deserves priority. And unless
there's a public benefit, such as affordable housing or infrastructure that stimulate the
economy, we don't believe it's appropriate to prioritize one permit in front of somebody
else's. The budget also speaks to enforcement. And again this is an issue that the
Department hears two opposing forces on, two, two opposite arguments. Many people
come to us and say you need to enforce our existing laws more. Other people come to us
and say can you please ignore that law, especially if they're the ones being enforced
against or if they're a special interest. And so we believe it's difficult to ignore the laws.
We have in our budget that we will seek an effective enforcement of our existing laws.
Back in Fiscal Year '08, the Council approved two new inspectors. We're not asking for
any more, but we are looking for more ways to be more effective, perhaps providing
them with more tools. Last year, the budget added an after-the-fact fee increase. But to
be truly effective in enforcement, I don't believe we can merely rely on our inspectors. I
think, I think as a community we have to all agree that if we have laws in the books, we
need to enforce those, though the Department believes we should enforce those in a
consistent manner, treat everyone the same and focus on the violation, not personalize it.
The Long Range Division, one of the goals or objectives is to present the General Plan
components to the Council for adoption this year. The Countywide Policy Plan has been
at Council since February of '08. The Maui Island Plan should get to the. . .Council later
this year, the, probably late 2009. There's a public hearing regarding the Maui Island
Plan on April 21s t in Wailuku. That's the first meeting before the Planning Commission
where they'll start to review it and they'll have six months. So again it should get to you
later this year. The community plans are starting to become initiated. There's some
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background work that's being done on those. Molokai and Lanai will be starting soon on
their community plans, and then West Maui and Hana--assuming that we get our staff
hired that we're trying to get hired. The, the Countywide Policy Plan is a compilation of
the three GPACs and the three planning commissions, and the Department used these six
committees as a basis for our recommendation. The Maui Island Plan, it's, it's nice to
know that the Department generally agrees with the GPAC recommendations. We'll
discuss any differences with the Planning Commission, and then hopefully we'll have
consensus and forward it to the Council by then. In, in terms of staffing, as Fred noted,
we're not asking for any additional positions. Our vacancies are all fairly recent. The
oldest ones I believe is October of '08 and December of '08, and we're both, we're
working on both of those and we believe they'll both be filled in the near future. So we
don't believe we have any long-term vacancies. My, my feeling is the Department is
actually understaffed and we would hope that we can hold on to all our positions even if
they're not filled on this exact date today. We recognize the economy is tight and that's
why we didn't request any additional positions. So to summarize again, it's an austere
budget for austere times. I believe the budget will allow ...(end of tape JA — 9:33
a.m.)... seek solutions and implement our mission statement and objectives as outlined
in the budget including legislation, adoption of plans, streamlined permitting and
effective but fair enforcement of our laws. We also have several staff members present,
division heads and other people who are head of special projects should you have any
particular questions. If the Deputy or I cannot answer them, we can rely on them,
hopefully we can answer your questions. With that, I'll turn it back to the Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Director Hunt. Members, the Chair would like to
recognize the presence of Mr. Molina, as well as Ms. Johnson.
. . . Okay. Members, what the Chair is going to do this morning is we'll go from
reviewing the Planning Department, we'll go to Salaries and Wages, then to Operations,
then to Equipment. Following those A, B, C accounts, you know, they do have special
programs that Chair would like to take one at a time. . .to expedite the review process on,
with the Planning, well with the Planning Department. So at this time on the A account,
under Salaries and Wages, Member Victorino, if you do have any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, Mr. Chair None at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Not on Salaries and Wages, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: None.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki? Thank you. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman, this, this is just for the Planning
Administration?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
. . . Uh, actually the Plan...Administration and Planning program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's the whole thing?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: That's the whole thing, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I'm going to pass for now, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Director, on the, the Detail
Budgets on Page 14-4. If you could explain the, the change amounts for one, two, those
two top salary positions, Land Use Permit Clerk and then your Planner W?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Department?
MS. AOKI: . . . For the Land Use Permit Clerk. . .it could be two, two things, either the position
was only funded for eight months in the prior year and so we needed to increase it for the
12 months for this year. . .because it wasn't funded for the entire year last year.
Secondly, there's, there could be an increase because the person. . .oh, no, that's the
Clerk, that's, is that ...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: You've got a Clerk position -MS. AOKI: I, I should ask Aaron Shinmoto if that's...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --and then you have a Planner W.
MS. AOKI: . . . I'm correct. Okay. He's saying I'm correct so. . .I'm correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So it's...
MS. AOKI: On the first one, for the Land Use Permit Clerk?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes.
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MS. AOKI: It went up because it's a 12-month funded position this year, whereas last year it
was only eight months.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Continue.
MS. AOKI: And then for the Planner W position, what we did when we hired, we have the
discretion when we hire a W, V, and a VI to go within a salary range. So when it was
initially asked for, we went with the lower salary, but we promoted in-house. So the
person that got promoted stayed within their step classification. So that's why the
funding had to be higher.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the step change is that amount, difference?
MS. AOKI: Well, when you look at the 35,568 that's probably like a beginning, you know, a
Level C when you first get hired. But this person that got hired for that position, we hired
her at an H. Plus it's subject to the 8- to 12-month funding difference again. Last Fiscal
Year, it was only funded for eight months, and this year it's funded for 12. So there's
actually two reasons why.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Two things on this, this particular item?
MS. AOKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. No, I'm just looking at, that's a, a
substantial increase.
MS. AOKI: It is. It is.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: But what, like I say, one is because you're adding on four more months of salary
and one is because you're paying this person at a higher step rate.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then can you look at the GIS one
next to that and explain? Is this like a percentage of a time? You got a .03.
MS. AOKI: Yeah. The GIS Intern is only for about three months.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: That's it?
MS. AOKI: And we, yeah, it's, it's, the idea is to bring somebody on so that they can learn sort
of in the Planning Department in Long Range. We have not filled that position, but we're
recruiting for it. It's just usually we try to do it during the summer months.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Now just below that you've got three
items--Salary Adjustments, Others that say Recruitment Incentive, and then Premium
Pay. Can you explain each one of those?
MS. AOKI: The, the Recruitment Incentive is something that we asked for, for the last two to
three years, because we were having such a problem filling in our Professional Planner
positions--so like the Police Department did when they asked for incentives to either pay
for moving expenses or bonuses after six-month probationary periods or one year, you
know, terms of employment. And then the Premium Pay is your, is for overtime cost,
which is 5 percent of your salaries. So that's pretty standard, every year we ask for that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. And in regard to those last two items, the Recruitment
Incentive, is that working as an incentive? Obviously, it's not paid out all to one person.
So would you say your retention has improved?
MS. AOKI: Well, the people that we gave it to are still here so that's good. We did, we have
used it quite a bit when we were filling positions in the Long Range and Current
Division. There were a few people that we brought in from the mainland. We did not
have any local people on the list to choose from so it wasn't even an option. So, you
know, you're sort of forced to look at this list that has mainland people, and it has
provided incentive for them to come and they're still here. So I would say yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. And with regard to the Premium Pay, is that
principally due to short staffmg?
MS. AOKI: Short staffmg. We have a lot of night meetings, you know, for the Current Planners
and Long Range Planners. A lot of the Zoning people, when we get backlogged with,
with permit requests, they'll stay, they'll come in on Saturdays. It's just, it's, it's the
workload, a lot of it is the workload, and then a lot of it is things that we have no control
over. And I'll give you an example, if we have to fly to Molokai for the Molokai
Planning Commission and we have no choice but to get on a 6:15 plane in the morning
and come back on a 6:00 p.m. flight, we are obligated to pay those staff members
overtime. So a lot of it comes down to just our schedule, the schedule of the staff.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.

-16-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 30, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, thank you very much. I would like to comment on
the staffing of the Planning Department. I realize that these folks, and when I look at the
Premium Pay I'm not surprised at all because I watched what went on with the GPAC
and they were there for hours on end. And I know that many, many hours were spent
prior to the meeting getting all the documents and copies and, you know, just getting all
of those 25 members of the General Plan with the information they needed, the
documents they needed, answering the requests, phone calls. And, you know, when you
have to service a group that big, I mean, you know, we have Council Services servicing
nine of us. Can you imagine . . .(laughter). . . what an effort it was in the Planning
Department to take care of 25 volunteers? I, I can just imagine just the logistics. I am
concerned though because I think I agree with Mr. Hunt that we are understaffed in your
Department. And, you know, if we hear anything as Council Members all the time, it's
about speeding it up, speeding it up, we need to move the paper, we need to get this and
we need to get that. And I don't understand how we're ever going to solve that problem
unless we give you the people to do it because it, it's an ongoing concern. And I just
wanted to comment on Molokai, you know, we just came back from the Budget hearing
on Molokai and one of the testifiers made a point to talk to me during the break and to let
me know that they felt that their Molokai Planning staff, the person that's there, I think
they have only one, is really, really busy. Because they have seen a huge surge in action
on Molokai as a result of the entrepreneurship training and all the new businesses that are
starting, and they say there's a lot of activity that they didn't have before. So I do
understand that you're working under very tight constraints and it's too bad that we're in
a tight Budget year 'cause if we weren't, I would be very supportive of trying to get you
more help. But I guess as it is, we're just going to have to all knuckle down and do the
best we can. But I did want to tell you I understand.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions on A account. My questions are relegated more
towards the B.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair has a question for the Department in regards to the
Zucker report. How is the Department meeting some of the recommendations of that
report and in regards to your manpower requirements, because there was a lot of issues
regarding, you know, how quickly we review planning.
MR. HUNT: . . . The, the Department actually appeared before the Cost of Government
Commission in June of '07 and we made a report, basically an analysis of the Zucker
recommendations and how the Department was performing. And going off the top of my
head, I believe we felt we'd accomplished perhaps a third of them, and we're working on
a third of them, and a third of them we probably still needed to work on. We, we used
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the Zucker report to, to try and more efficiencies within the Department and it had a
number of good suggestions. And you can see those details being, coming forth in the
budget itself in some of the streamlining proposals that I talked about and some of the
efficiencies that we're working on. So I guess my answer to the question would be
we're, we're still referring to the Zucker report and the recommendations. We believe
there's a number of good recommendations that we can continue to work on and we have
accomplished a number of them. We'll continue to seek more efficiencies and
streamlining in the Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Hunt. And going forward if, you know, you do have
updated information, you know, thank you for that information that you just provided us.
Maybe in the next Budget cycle if you do make any or achieve any recommendations
from the report that, you know, you let this body know so that for me, you know, kind of
understand that it's not only you looking at your Department but also looking at some
recommendations that we paid monies for, you know, through an independent contractor.
So thank you for that information.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki, followed by Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Jeff, can you explain to me, I see 14 vacancies and maybe this
may be the reason why you're not able to put out the work as you mentioned earlier that
you need more people, you're under funded. But 14 people means 14 warm bodies that
are not doing the work.
MR. HUNT: I believe the most current update that we have right now has one, two, three, four,
five, six vacancies, and our report that we have is recruitment in progress, recruitment in
progress for virtually all of them except one is interview is already being conducted.
Again our vacancy, and this is the information that was provided to me, updated. Our
vacancy list shows that the oldest vacancy is October of 2008 and that was due to a
planner taking a different position. So I would, I would argue we don't have any long
lasting vacancies. I understand the argument that if a position hasn't been filled for years
and years do you really need it? I don't think that scenario applies to the Planning
Department. We have vacancies right now, but it's virtually impossible to have, you
know, no vacancies ever, I mean people come and go.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, and, and fmally you said that permits take only 15 days
to, from the time of application to the time of giving back the people that have applied. Is
that what you mentioned, the 15 day review?
MR. HUNT: The, the 15 day review is the time it takes to get to a residential permit right now.
So we call that the backlog. In other words the permit comes in and it literally sits there
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for 15 days and then they get to it. You know 15 days may sound bad but it's a heck of a
lot better then it used to be. Commercial's a better example, when I first became Director
it was six months before they got to it and now it's I think I said 30 days.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And it could be probably because of construction's down?
MR. HUNT: I think to be honest with you I think that's a part of it -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: --but I also think a part of it is because the Department, and we started reducing the
backlog way before the economy went south on us. I think part of it is some of the
efficiencies that we've instituted, the dual permitting process where you have a simple
permitting versus complex; more training for our staff; giving some overtime; the
Premium Pay that we talked about earlier. The Department set out goals saying okay for
certain items we're going to grant Premium Pay, and one of those items was to reduce the
backlog on those permits.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So from the general public you, you would say that there is no
reason for them to be complaining -MR. HUNT: Oh, I wouldn't...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --in view of the time that it takes now to process?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
MR. HUNT: I won't go that far.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. HUNT: I, I think, I think the Department honestly deserves some credit for -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Uh-huh.
MR. HUNT: --admitting there was a backlog and for focusing our efforts on streamlining it. We
have, we can continue to make progress in that direction and we are committed to doing
that.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Mr. Chairman, you know, under the, on the Planning
Department in the vacancies, when it says Planning ZAED what, what does that mean?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good question. Mr. Director?
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MR. HUNT: ZAED is an acronym for Zoning, Administration, and Enforcement Division. So
that's one of our four divisions in the Department. They handle routine zoning inquiries,
they review building permits and they do enforcement.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So those are part of your vacancies also, then? Because you've
got five in that area.
MR. HUNT: Well, my most updated list that was provided to me as of March 30 th is we have
one vacancy in the ZAED. And we are conducting, interviews are being conducted
currently.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. In regards to our vacancy report that we
have, it's dated March 20m. So the Department may have more updated information
regarding their vacancies. And, Mr. Nishiki, you bring out a good point because all this
acronyms, you know, thank you for asking that question.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before I go into Mr. Molina, Chair has a question for the Department.
When you say that you have a 15-day turnaround time, do you take a percentage as far as
how many of the permits have met the 15-day criteria that you set for the Department?
MR. HUNT: Well, just to be clear, the 15 days is the backlog before we even get to the permit.
Once the permit is starting to be reviewed, it could go quickly if it's a simple permit and
there's no problems. It could take a long time, if there are issues, if there's agency
concerns, neighbor concerns, et cetera, depending on the type of permit. So the, the 15
days is just to get to the permit and...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Just to get to the permit?
MR. HUNT: Correct.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you don't have any objective as far as, you know, how soon you,
after the 15 day. . .how soon you get to any of the permits and the percentage of the
permits that you review after the 15 day criteria? I think it's important for not only us to,
to get a handle of that but also, you know, provide information to the, to the people that
go through your Department for permitting process. At least, you know, it tells us what
percentage of those permits are meeting, you know, certain criteria. So with that, we go
to Member Medeiros and then Member Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Department, thank you for the
information you have provided. Under Details on Page 14-2. . .two-thirds of the way
down, the position with the note that position W went to Planner V. So did you
reallocate that position? PC-0059 is the position number.
NOTE: Silence.

MS. AOKI: . . . I'm sorry, Bill, I don't know which position this belongs to, which Division.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But, but when you, when the note says to Planner V?
MS. AOKI: Usually what that means is that we have a Planner W -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MS. AOKI: --who will have the, the years of service and qualifications to be upgraded and
promoted to a Planner V.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So you didn't move the position to a Planner V
position?
MS. AOKI: No. It would be that position just in-house being promoted up to a V being -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. AOKI: --reallocated up to a V.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that clarification. And then, you
know, speaking of the vacancies that Mr. Nishiki and the Committee Chair inquired
about, right, our, our list shows you with seven and your shows you with six and you
have the more updated list than we do. But four of the vacancies, according to our list,
are Planners and two are Inspectors. So are, are you in the process of trying to fill these
positions?
MS. AOKI: Let me, maybe it would help if I went through what we have.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. AOKI: Would that answer all your questions? Okay. So for the Planning Current Division,
we have a Planner III that's currently available. We had a Planner V, we downgraded it
to a III. We are in the recruitment process, we're getting the list from DPS, they do have
a Planner III. In fact we do have somebody in mind for that position, we were just
waiting for DPS to do the paperwork to get it downgraded to a III. So now that we've
gotten that, we should be able to make this person the offer. There is a Planner I position
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in the Current Division, this was just recently vacated by the planner in Current who got
promoted to a III. So we are requesting the list for that. The next position is a Planner V
in Current Division. Again this was a position that was just recently vacated by a planner
who got promoted to a VI. And we recruited for the Planner V about a month ago and
we're waiting for the list from DPS. So as soon as we get that list, we'll be hiring.
MR. HUNT: And if I could jump in, my Secretary told me that the date there is a typo and it
should read March 16, '09 for that position.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. AOKI: Then there is a Planner V, limited-term appointment position in Long Range and we
are getting the list for that. There's also a Planner V in Long Range who we have made
an offer to, we're just waiting for Accu-Med. The last position would be in the Zoning
Administration Division and it's a Zoning Inspector Trainee and we are currently
conducting interviews, so we've already gotten the list for that. Now you may see which
has caused some confusion, there's two other positions under ZAED--Clerk Typist III
and a Zoning Inspector II.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. AOKI: Those positions a couple years ago were funded by the County, they used to be
through a grant through Coastal Zone Management and we asked that the County fund
them. So we, we actually have those positions and they are being funded by the County
but they're still showing up on this list as being vacant, because technically they are
vacant through the grant process but we're not trying to hire for those because we now
have it funded through the County.
MR. HUNT: There was some concern that, we were getting a message from the State that the
CZM was going to be reduced in the amount of grants available to the County. We didn't
want to lose those CZM-funded positions, so we switched them over to Operations from
the County Budget, but they still show up on this sheet as vacant.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. The DPS list that we have, your Clerk Typist III,
their comments on it is "per manpower, position unfunded in '09". So are you looking
for funding in 2010?
MS. AOKI: No. That's, that's the position that we actually had transferred over to the County.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That one and the Zoning Inspector II?
MS. AOKI: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And as far as your LTA Planner V, was somebody
doing that work during the status of LTA? Or it's vacant?
MS. AOKI: It's, it's vacant right now, it's actually my position -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay.
MS. AOKI: --that as a Planner V . . .(laughter). . . in Long Range. So we are trying to get
somebody as an exempt hire as soon as we can while we are recruiting and getting the
list. 'Cause we just went and they just, DPS just advertised the Planner V position about
a month ago.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. AOKI: So they told me that hopefully by the end of this month or hope. . .early April we
should be getting a new, and there apparently were a number of people on that Planner V
list which is a good thing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And the Inspector Trainee, you're also in the
process, recruiting for that?
MS. AOKI: Yeah. We had interviews last week.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so your, your employee count is 65.2, and if,
say, according to DPS you have seven vacancies, so your full staff would be 72.2 EP?
MR. HUNT: No. I believe the 65.2 includes vacant positions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is your, is your force...full staff?
. . . Okay. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you, Department.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair A question on A account for the
Department. Where on, on your roster is the, I guess the small town planner, the
specialist? What position or title is that under?
. . . And, and I bring this up, Mr. Chairman, because, you know, we're looking at cuts
being made in other areas in the B account and I want to know what kind of outcome or
result we have been getting with the small town planner. I believe this was a recently, a
recent addition I guess or, or a position from the Department. I think we've had this, I
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guess, specialist for now, what, maybe one, two years? If I could get comments from the
Department on that?
MS. AOKI: I'll answer the first part of your question. The small town planner is on Page 14-4.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: It's PC-0080 that Councilmember Nishiki brought up, where we had to adjust the
salary from eight months to twelve months. So that position was recently filled, I can't
give you the exact date but it was probably sometime around September or October,
October...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Of '08?
MS. AOKI: Yeah, of '08.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. 'Cause I, what comes to mind there was someone else
that was in this position a lot longer than that. I don't know why, but they've been, this
person apparently was working with, for example the Tri-Isle Main Street. Um .. .
MS. AOKI: There were, yeah, there were planners that worked with the Tri-Isle but not this
specific small town planner position -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: --that was created. So this specific position -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MS. AOKI: --where this was this only planner's job description -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: --was filled in around October of '08.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And that's being, the pay is being bumped up from 35,568 for
FYI '09 to 53,352--and I apologize, and what is the reason for that again?
MS. AOKI: The reason twofold, one we're, we're adjusting for the four months that we did not
include-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh.
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MS. AOKI: --in '08 or '09. And also because with Planner W, V, and VI, we have the
discretion of hiring within a certain step movements. So this person that was hired was
hired at her allocated step movement versus being hired at a entry level step movement.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Well I, maybe I, I, you know, for me I know
you're trying to add positions to augment some of the other work that we're doing. But it
concerns me that we're cutting entities that have actually saved the County money over
time, and we're adding a position here that, I don't know if it may be a duplication of
services or what but 'cause we never had this position before, yeah. And I mean I'm sure
the Department have their reasons, but if things were going well without this position and
now we're going to cut back on an entity such as the Tri-Isle Main Street Association
and, you know, have this position, then I certainly want to see a good outcome out of this
and hopefully not a duplication of services. Because if we were doing fine without it,
then why the need to have a specialist? You know so, just my, my thoughts on it,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, we're going to go to the B account and -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair'?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the Chair would like to remind everyone of you that if you do have
more questions -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --regarding Salaries and Wages, you know, provide that comment to
this, to the Chairman to get answers from the Department. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I was going to ask, Mr. Yoshida--is he here for this
specific question or? 'Cause I think he was coming to bring us some more information if
that, if I may ask that question, Mr. Chair, if that is allowable with you, sir?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't know why Mr. Yoshida came down, probably for that. But,
Mr. Yoshida?
MR. YOSHIDA: Yeah. I was here to answer the question raised by Councilmember Molina,
because the small town planner falls under Current Division. It is an expansion position
in the FY '09 Budget. Because of the redistribution of how MRA is handled, this was an
expansion position that was applied for in the FY '09 Budget. The person selected is,
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took a cut from a Planner V to a Planner W, and they do handle a lot of the MRA
development permits as well as some of the Country Town Design review, say for the
new proposed Lanai Senior Center as well as Historic District review in the Lahaina
historic districts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, thank you for that information and
we'll, we'll go to the B account which is Operations. Mr. Victorino, if you have any
questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. If I may, Mr. Hunt. I guess, and I just want to
understand it because I, I know your overall budget was almost, not quite 75,000 more
. . . (end of tape 1B — 10:04 a.m.). . . on Page 14-5 under Office Supplies. And I going to
the big ones, I'm not going to play with the small stuff. But let's say the Office Supplies,
I see a large increase of about $10,000. That's Subcode 6037.
. . . Mr. Hunt?
MR. HUNT: As I understand it, the request for this Fiscal Year reflects, more accurately reflects
what we project the actual line item to be. In the past when we had salary savings and
the budget was flush, the accounting wasn't very precise. And I believe we spent more
on office supplies than what was budgeted, but we just took it from somewhere else. So
according to the people who did the fine-tuning on the budget preparation, this would
accurately reflect office supply expenditures for the coming year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then I go down to Services, under Professional
Service 6132. I see another 30,000 or about 10 percent increase in that one. Maybe you
can explain to us what that, what that, that there makes up of.
MS. AOKI: Sure. The 30,000 was increased because of court reporting services. We've had a
lot of GPAC meetings. And we anticipate this year having a lot of meetings with the
Maui Planning Commission to go over the Maui Island Plan So they have doubled their
meetings for six months. So it's, it's essentially to reflect court reporting services that are
going to be required.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So that just basically involving GPAC and -MS. AOKI: Yeah. The General...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --the Planning Commission.
MS. AOKI: Right. Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. 'Cause if you're going to say GPAC itself, I mean I
thought they're pretty much...
MS. AOKI: Yeah. GPAC is over.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yes.
MS. AOKI: The other thing too is just in general the Maui Planning Commission meetings have
been going a little bit longer and you're required to have the court reporter stay, so.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I can, I can accept that. And then I go down
to the next big one which would have fallen under Rentals and I think we've seen an
increase in Rentals, that's 6235. Same page, 6235. I guess like everybody else, but I'd
like to know is that basically because of more space being needed by you guys being
rented out?
MS. AOKI: Correct. We need to get more space for the Current Planning Division, so we've
allocated about $30,000 additional to rent out space in One Main Plaza.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: One Main Plaza?
MS. AOKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And, and I guess I'm going just to continue
where Mr. Victorino left off. I guess with your reduction in Operations, that 192-plus,
because of the expanded meetings, because you'll soon be doing the Molokai and Lanai
Community Plans, how does that impact the Department with this reduction of, of almost
193,000?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. HUNT: Most of that 193,000 is a comparison to last year's budget which had a number of
special projects, and we've eliminated a lot of those special projects, we haven't funded
them this year. The, the nuts and bolts of the operations, day-to-day operations--travel
and court reporters and that kind of, is, is essentially the same. And so we've absorbed
the, the decrease in our budget through elimination of special projects but not in, in
services--for lack of a better description.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So there is no actual impact then in the, I guess the startup of
the two neighbor island plans?
MR. HUNT: We don't believe there's an impact in, in this budget on that.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And then there, there's several other on your Details 14-8,
there's a couple of areas, one named Integrated Socioeconomic Land Use Services, the
other Environmental Assessment Planning, and the other is the ZAED Enforcement.
The, the amounts are small. Can you tell me what these services will include? Because
this is really the first time in the last number of fiscal years that you're asking for
funding, small funding in these particular areas.
MR. HUNT: The Socioeconomic Land Use Services would be used to update our
socioeconomic and land use forecast that are the projections for the population and
economic growth into the future that the Long Range Division is using as a basis to
update.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Does the Department do that or does the data control, there, there's
another, there's another entity that does that?
MR. HUNT: It's, it's an outside entity.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And that'll cost 75,000 to do that?
MR. HUNT: I believe so.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And the other?
MR. HUNT: The Palauea beach lots environmental assessment is to complete the environment
assessment for the Palauea beach lots. This is the County's pro rated share. There's
several lots there, there's two that were purchased by the County and so that would be
our pro rata share of that environmental assessment.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
MR. HUNT: That's required to, to. . .because there's a community plan amendment -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
MR. HUNT: --proposed for that area. The ZAED Enforcement Fund is a fund that would be
used to enhance enforcement. It could be used for anything from, actually doing a
transaction to gather evidence that there is an illegal business operating. It could be used
to hire an undercover person to go and visit a business similar to the Liquor Control.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. That's all I needed. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And can you explain the next one down? The Wailuku
Municipal Parking Lot, $400,000?
MR. HUNT: The Wailuku Municipal Parking Lot has several funding sources, one is the
400,000 listed here, that would come from the County. And in addition to that there's a
1 2 million that I believe would come from the Federal government, and that would be
for planning and design of the parking structure between Vineyard and, and Main Street.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . I, I remember several years ago there were some developers that
were considering developing that municipal parking lot. I think there were like three of
them or maybe four. And looking at the plans that were being considered by each of
them. . .does the Planning Department looking at probably, looking at these people that
offered their ideas to the County to plan this parking lot as well as office space for the
County of Maui?
MR. HUNT: As I understand it, there was a public process that ensued several years ago
regarding the parking structure, and out of that public process there was a preferred
alternative that there was consensus on. The Department believes the best approach
would be to go forward with that preferred alternative. The next step would be to take
that preferred alternative to this Council and to have your shot at reviewing it. The
preferred alternative has four plates of parking and then on a, on an adjacent lot it has
commercial uses. And because of the public process and that's a preferred alternative
and to save time and not start from square one, we anticipate bringing that preferred
alternative to the Council.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: 14-7. . .Development Impact Fee Study. That study has been
completed and now recommendations to the Council is going to be forthcoming? Or are
we stopping the impact fee study now and not funding it anymore there?
MS. AOKI: No, the Development Impact Fee was funded last Fiscal Year and we are currently
going out with requests for proposals for consultants to do that. So it has not start, it, the
process has been started, but the actual fee study has not been completed.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. So for this coming Fiscal Year, the zero funding is not
going to stop that?
MS. AOKI: Not at all.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
MR. HUNT: And that's the traffic impact fee study--just so everyone's aware. There, there was
a request for additional information when we brought that to Council, so this is
implementing that request, it's gathering additional information. But it's already in this
year's budget.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: This was because. . .it was decided by the Council that they're
going to look at the entire County. . .to create an impact fee and not just for South Maui
or West Maui in which we are studying it?
MR. HUNT: I, I don't want to speak of the specifics, but the Council did ask for additional
information. We, we can have John Summers answer more detailed questions.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No. It, it's not that important, other than the fact that we're
proceeding along with it?
MR. HUNT: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I, I'm back on 14-5 if you can go
there. And just some general questions. Under 6060 the Small Equipment which is for
equipment that costs under $500, is this like office equipment or just generally equipment
needed in all your different divisions?
MS. AOKI: Yeah. It could be anything from like digital cameras that the zoning inspectors use,
to buying a cell phone, or buying, you know, screens to take to GPAC meetings. It could
be a gamut of things for all, all the different divisions so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you. And right under that, 6071. . .are you
looking to a new request for supplies? Because in '09, it was zero.
MS. AOKI: No. Again this is just us trying to make a more accurate spreadsheet for you. So
this actually fell under a different line item. So we're just trying to accurately reflect
where this money should go. So it's nothing new, it's just been moved around.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And at the bottom of that page under Index Code
909015--and you may have answered this, I'm not sure if any of the Members asked it or
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if it was in your presentation. But the Coastal Erosion Rate Maps Update Services. . in
2010 you're asking for 100,000 and, and so in '09 and '08 there wasn't any.
MS. AOKI: Right. The maps are required to be updated so many years, and so now we're at
that point where we need to, by law, update the West and South Maui erosion maps. So
that's why there wasn't a request for funding to update them last year.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And on the coastal erosion maps, what areas or
districts. . .are looked at as far as producing those maps?
MS. AOKI: For this particular funding it'll be West Maui and South Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So what dictates what districts get funding?
MS. AOKI: The years, yeah, the years that they get done--since they're done sort of in phases
when they're, then their time is up and the law says we need to update it. So it's just like
the community plans -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. AOKI: --that's sort of how they, so west and, and in addition West and South Maui are
obviously the most heavily used maps. But they are the most, they're the eldest maps as
well.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And these maps you have in your inventory if we would
want to see them?
MS. AOKI: Sure. They're on-line, too, on the County website.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: On-line?
MS. AOKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Let me see.
. . . Mr. Chairman, are we going to go separately to ask about the accomplishments and
performance measures? When, when do you want those questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Should have been . . . (laughter). . . the A account. But if you do have,
you know, go ahead and ask.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: The A account is the salaries, that's when you wanted that?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Because, you know, coming from private business, that's where
you get your raises and, you know, everything else based on, you know, your
performance and goals.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: But if you do have a question, go ahead and ask.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I just have two. In the budget proposal on
Page 16-5. . .under your Accomplishments for Calendar Year 2008, Current Division,
second to the last bullet--process various permits for public projects in an expedited
mariner And I just want to ask this just to make some awareness and you have, may
have been already asked outside of this meeting by the Member from the Molokai
District. But I wanted to ask. . .where there's public benefit, is there a process where it
can be expedited? And I'm specifically, you know, as a military veteran asking about the
Molokai Veterans Building permit process. 'Cause I watched it on Akaku at the
Planning, Molokai Planning Commission, and the Molokai Planning Commission is
supporting a more expedited process of that particular permit. And so I was wondering,
you know, what's the expedited portion of that process that would help the Molokai
Veterans Building permit process?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. HUNT: . . . It's difficult to expedite any permit too much. I mean we have to be careful
not to do it too much. We can expedite a permit by placing it ahead of other ones, putting
it, normally we'd take them as they come in. A permit that came in today should get
serviced before a permit that comes in tomorrow. If there's a public benefit, we'll make
an exception because it benefits the entire community and we, we may take it out of line.
But we need to be careful not to interpret that as saying well, we're going to give a
briefer review against the applicable criteria because then we get into trouble. Or, or take
a shortcut and make an exemption, you know, like the Superferry or something like that.
We have to follow our laws. We can give it a prioritization, but once we start working
on it, we believe we need to, the public permits need to follow the laws and regulations
just as the private ones do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Even at the recommendation of the Molokai Planning
Commission, this is just about all you can do to expedite it?
MR. HUNT: Well, we have explored solutions to that particular permit. We asked that, that I
believe the term was "community centers" or "nonprofit organizations" be added to the
Interim District Bill that the Planning Committee reviewed recently, and I think we can
add that. . .that, until that bill's adopted. We've taken a look at interpreting the Code to
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see if it would, if we could fmd an interpretation. At one point somebody suggested we
permit it as a museum. And that, that was a stretch for us and so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Well, thank you for the information. I don't want to
prolong the inquiry on that but just to bring awareness to that. On the following
Page 16.6 [sic], under Accomplishments for Calendar Year 2008 (Continued), Zoning
Enforcement and Administration Division, the first bullet is the Digital Flood Mapping
Project. Again like the erosion maps, what areas or districts receive this project? And
how is that decided? And...
MR. HUNT: I believe it was near the Iao Stream and then in Kihei. But I can, I can ask my staff
to come down and give you a more definitive answer.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: What, well, let me ask the second follow-up question to
that. Does, does digital flood mapping projects include rain as well as ocean flooding?
MR. HUNT: . . . This is Francis Cerizo, who's in charge of our flood plain permitting.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman, it's all right? Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Go ahead.
MR. CERIZO: The Digital Flood Mapping Project is being done by FEMA and they're, they're
converting all of our paper maps to a digital format. Over the past four years we've been,
we've been trying to upgrade our maps so that we can get as many new studies made
with, and that was what the money was being used for the last four years. So the areas
that we've been, it covers the whole County. The majority of the studies--besides having
LIDAR done for the whole entire County--Lanai got their whole shoreline. . .mapped
and, and, and mapped and finalized. We also had major studies done in Kihei, in
Wailuku, in, and, well, basically in Kihei and Wailuku.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so my, my question is and you, you made
reference to the fact that it covers the entire County.
MR. CERIZO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Does it mean that it covers the entire island of Maui, island
of Molokai and island of Lanai? Or is it specific areas that are targeted for this?
MR. CERIZO: No, it's the entire, the entire County. So they're converting all of our maps...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Okay. I understand the entire County.
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MR. CERIZO: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: But does it mean the entire coastal area of each island?
MR. CERIZO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And my follow-up question was, does the flood
mapping include rain and ocean flooding or just rain?
MR. CERIZO: They include both.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Both?
MR. CERIZO: When you say oceans it's a, a recent...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And it's not tsunami I'm talking about.
MR. CERIZO: It's hurricane.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well...
MR. CERIZO: Yeah, the most recent one is the hurricane study and there was some updating of
the tsunami information, also.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. You know on the areas like East Maui and any part
of the east side of any island where you have the rougher oceans and we have the winter
storm surfs, it doesn't take a tsunami or a hurricane to flood coastal areas. So I just
wanted to be sure that it included ocean flooding.
MR. CERIZO: Um. . .I would have to check the maps to see to what extent East Maui's study,
how much of it was completed. But my understanding is that most of the coastal areas
was evaluated for an impact of a hurricane. So some coasts have more of an impact
during hurricane events, and those are like, those sides of the coast were, was studied
more. . .impacts from, from coastal storms and winter storms.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Yeah. Because in the east, east coastal zone areas
like Hana, if you combine a full moon with a storm surf, it'll come fairly high up the
coastal areas. But thank you for that information, Department. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you. I was just going to comment
and, and add that you may want to look at tidal flooding which is something other than
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storm and that's what Member Medeiros is adding. My, my questions have to do with all
of the items that are listed on 14-5, -6, -7 and -8. Director, when you said that you made
some priority shifts in terms of what projects you were going to fund in '10 and that was
where major costs efforts are being done by the Department, if I look at these four pages
then, am I then to assume that in earlier question that Member Nishiki asked about a
project shown funded for '09 but not in 0-10, I mean in '10 that the projects just were no
longer in progress, and your response was that it is in progress and that it would be
completed sometime in '10. So in the list that you have here of '09 projects that have
been funded or are currently funded and reflect zero in '10, then are they in the same
condition?
MR. HUNT: Not all of them. Because of the current budget shortfall on projected revenues, we
were directed to cut our existing budget, '09 budget by 16 percent. And the way we
responded for the most part was to eliminate a number of these special projects in the '09
budget. So even though it shows zero in Fiscal Year '10, that doesn't meant it was
accomplished in '09. Some of those '09 projects were actually just eliminated or
dropped.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So some of them are in progress and
others are not -MR. HUNT: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --they've been totally, completed dropped?
MR. HUNT: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Would you identify the, the ones that are still in
progress then?
MS. AOKI: I, how about I identify first which we, we dropped three -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: --from '09.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Aoki?
MS. AOKI: The implementation of enterprise...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Ms. Aoki, please, if you can go from the first project all the way
through to the last one?
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MS. AOKI: Okay.
. . . So starting on Page 14-6?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Five.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Five.
MS. AOKI: Five?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You already talked about the erosion rates.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Right.
MS. AOKI: Okay. The Erosion Rate Coastal Maps we're asking for in Fiscal Year '10. We're
not asking for anything for Cultural Resource Management Plan Update, that was in '08.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MS. AOKI: On to Page 14-6, Beach Nourishment Project Services that we asked for in '08
we've expended.
. . . Implementation of Enterprise Geodatabase Services for 100,000 in '09, we did cut so
that is not, that was not implemented and will not be implemented this fiscal year.
. . . 3D Models of Building Services, 50,000, we cut that also.
. . . Cultural Resource Management HAEBS, we are implementing and we do ask for
continued funding in Fiscal Year '10.
. . . Pioneer Mill Office-COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, just a quick question on that one because
it's reflected in '09 -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --as well. Is it -MS. AOKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --ongoing?
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MS. AOKI: It is ongoing...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And continuing?
MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. HUNT: It's mostly a fund to help out private landowners record their historic building for,
for historical resource educational purposes in the future. So it's kind of an ongoing
fund.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. HUNT: It's not tied to one particular project.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
MS. AOKI: The Pioneer Mill Office Rehabilitation for 150,000 was cut, so we did not, we are
not doing that this year.
. . . Permit Fee Study for 50,000, we are doing and we have, we're in the process of
selecting a consultant.
. . . The Puunene Airport Master Plan, we are pursuing also. We have an RFP that's
going to go out for advertisement sometime in the next few weeks.
. . . Maui Redevelopment Agency, yes, that's continuing.
MR. HUNT: . . . With a 10 percent cut.
MS. AOKI: Percent cut.
. . . The Development Impact Fee Study that Councilmember Nishiki asked about, which
a.k.a. is a traffic impact fee, we are pursuing with the 335,000 and are advertising an RFP
shortly.
. . . Wailuku Main Street/Tri-Isle, we are supporting a 10 percent cut for Fiscal Year '10.
. . . The General Plan Update, 100,000 was asked for last year which, or I'm sorry, this
year, which we are using and are, we're doing an RFP to continue with the Hana
Community Plan update, the second phase of it. And the rest of the funds are used to do
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the GPAC meetings and fund studies and that kind of thing. So for 100,000 next year, it
would again include the second phase of the Hana Community Plan update.
. . . Everything else on that page is zero, zero, zero.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Then on the 14-8?
MS. AOKI: Yeah, 14-8. . .UH Sea Grant is a grant that we received, that funds Zoe Norcross
Nu' u' s position.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. HUNT: It actually funds, I believe, three-quarters of it.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then in the Mitigation?
MS. AOKI: Yeah. The Development Mitigation Fee Study, we are using the 60,000 to do a
contract amendment. . .for that study.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you. And then the rest are all
proposed, new then?
MS. AOKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for that clarification, Chair
. . . I'm done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Done?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. In regard to the Pioneer Mill, the 150,000 which was,
from my recollection that was actually supposed to be done to look at the, I guess the
hazardous materials in the building. And the grant recipient can't go forward unless that
is done. So what would you propose? Because we put that in there, we expected it to be
implemented and now you took it out. So . . . (laughter). . . what's your thinking?
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MR. HUNT: I'm thinking the Mayor and the Council need to get together and work something
out. We're caught in a rock and a hard place. And Council approves Fiscal Year Budget
'09, the Mayor comes to us and says you need to cut your spending 'cause the revenues
are, are not coming in as projected. So. . .we're getting, we're getting cross direction or
different directions. We, we have, according to the direction I'm given, we have to cut
our budget somehow this year, because it was based on, it was compiled prior to the
economy going down on us. So the revenues aren't coming in, we, we have to make
some cuts somewhere.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, so those projects that got attention earlier on,
those are going forward, and the ones that for one reason or another didn't get prioritized
or acted upon, those are the ones that suffer whether they have merit or not?
MR. HUNT: Actually we, we were directed to present proposed cuts to the Mayor's office and
we responded to that, and the Mayor accepted some and didn't accept others. So...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Mr. Chair, I, I just, you know, it's disturbing to me
that being that we did put that money in and specifically because it was a
recommendation made by not only us but by the former . . .(laughter). . . you know,
Deputy Director to actually put this money in so that Tri-Isle Resource and Development
could actually move forward with the grant recipient. They're dead in the water. They
really can't move forward and they were counting on this money for matching funds. So
this really is problematic for me. And so if nothing else, I'll be resubmitting it. Because
it's too late, it will have lapsed. Is that correct?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Department?
MS. AOKI: It, it probably hasn't lapsed, but the contract request date has lapsed.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MS. AOKI: So if we were to go out for bid, it would be too late.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. . . .(end of tape 2A — 10:34 a.m.). . . you
know, we'll deal with this separately. But the, I guess in regard to all the studies and, you
know, all of the different projects that you have going, at some point I know that we will
probably get the information on some of these. But in the past when studies have
actually been undertaken, one of the things that happens is--you know,
Mr. Kaho'ohalahala asked about what's the status--one of the difficulties we have as
Council Members is that we have no clue . . .(laughter). . . what's been done. We fund
the study, we fund a project and there's no communication one way or the other from the
Administration unless it's a specific issue that's in committee already. So is there some
-39-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 30, 2009

way that when we fund something or when we put something out there that does involve
either a report or some kind of a project, that we could at least be communicated back
that information so that we'd be aware of what the status is?
MR. HUNT: That seems a reasonable request to me, I mean communication between us and the
Council seems valuable. I just want to clarify that a number of these projects that, that
we had to cut, we didn't want to cut, we supported them. My staff comes to me and says,
you know, don't cut that project. There's only so much money and right now it's tough
times and there's some tough decisions being made.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I, I understand that. And some of these projects,
because I'm not sure what, you know, you have that permit fee fund?
MR. HUNT: . . . The permit fee study?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, no, it's a fund into which I guess, you know, this
money from all of your different permits. I can't recall, Mr Chair, what the name of the
fund is, but anyway it's basically a fund that was created into which, I don't know if it's
fines or different permits or whatever fees go into that fund...
MS. AOKI: If, if I can answer that? Public Works has a fee fund, but we don't. There's no
legislation devised to allow Planning Department to, to keep our own fees and
re-circulate it within the Department. We'd love to do that, but Public Works, DSA for
building permits has that. We don't.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You, you, so you don't have anything in Planning with any
funds at all?
MS. AOKI: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I could have sworn in the past that we received testimony
utilizing monies from a fund that actually, I don't know if it was from fines assessed by
Planning Department but we'll do more research on that because I'm pretty sure that we
did receive from Wayne Boteilho in the past when he was in Planning, that there was
some type of a fund created from which monies could actually be taken. So, you know,
failing that . . .(laughter). . . I guess the only other thing I would ask and this is just in
regard to, I guess, a question that I guess it sort of relates to what we're looking at now.
But it would be your operations in general. When a permit comes through--whether it's
for these projects or anything else, when a permit comes through and it does not involve,
let's say, a particular department like Water or it doesn't involve review by a department
that you would ordinarily get a comment on, why does it still go to, I guess, the Fire
Department for a comment? And why does it still go to Water for comment when the
project may or may not even involve those departments? Well, it doesn't involve those
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departments. Because that is just one . . . (laughter). . . you know, thing that's a puzzle to
me, and if you could explain why these permits or the request for information on permits
where they don't involve any plumbing changes, no water permits, you know, nothing
else, why does it still go to those departments? And you can think about that one. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Johnson, just for information
to the Chair regarding Pioneer Mill Office Rehabilitation, you mentioned about matching
funds--and if you could get some clarification regarding the matching funds from the
nonprofit group?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. I, I'd be happy to get that because basically it would
be that they were granted the original lease. That was one aspect, I guess, you would say
in kind, you know, good faith that the value of the lease was worth something. But then
basically in order for them to proceed and go forward to secure any funding whatsoever,
they have to make sure that the site is habitable. And that was why we needed the study.
But anything that the County puts in, in terms of capital, we would then be able to go out
or they would be able to go out and secure matching funds. But, you know, at this point
in time it's very difficult to do much of anything. You can have a lease, but if the
building is not habitable because these core studies have not been done, it's
. . . (laughter). . . it's a dead issue. So I'll, I'll deal with this -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --and I'll have the grant recipient or at least in this case this
was a grant through their Department for them to do the work. I'll, I'll talk to the people
that have the lease and have them come forward and just explain where they are. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good. Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, several questions, quick ones. Does the Department
have County cars?
MR. HUNT: I believe we have 11.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: The reason I'm asking is because I noticed that there is a
provision for mileage in 6204, but I can't find a line item for any kind of supplies or
repairs to any of the vehicles that are in your Department. Is that taken care of by
someone else?
MR. HUNT: Um-- 41 -
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: In fact the line item for Gas, Diesel, Oil is zero . . . (laughter).. .
MS. AOKI: Yeah. Public Works is responsible for all the maintenance of our vehicles. So the
mileage that you see in there is mileage that we would pay for staff to drive to the airport
or to drive to a meeting. It also covers boards and commissions and their mileage.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But there's nothing in your Department to pay for the expense of
your own vehicles?
MS. AOKI: That comes out of Public Works' budget.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Good. Well, let somebody else pay for it, let it go
. . . (laughter). . . I mean, you know, eventually the County's paying -MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --but it's strange to me that it's budgeted somewhere else. The
other thing I wanted to comment on briefly was that, the study that was raised, the
question was raised before already on the impact fees. I would really like to see this as a
priority and ask you to please move it. You know when I became Planning Chair, I
wanted to faint that we had an item in that Committee since 1980s. And the rock in the
road we ran into was because the study needed to be updated. And so we funded this last
year, because we really need that information so we can deal with collecting impact fees
properly. So, you know, its been nine months that this money's been sitting there, so I
ask you please, please getting it going. And, Chair, the last question I'm going to ask can
be answered in writing, and this is we recently passed the B&B Ordinance, and I'd like a
status report as to how many permits have been applied for and how we're doing in
processing those permits. But that you can answer in writing later. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Baisa. We'll do that. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair. For the Director on, under the
Tri-Isle Main Street, I guess, reduction. First of all, I note that in your Professional
Services for, and thank you for explaining your position 'cause you're in a tough
position. You've been given the mandate by the Administration--cut 10 percent
wherever. Professional Services for the Cultural Resource Management have, that's been
kept flat. Also Professional Services for the General Plan Update, that's been kept flat.
Before I get to my Tri-Isle Main Street question, can you tell us why some entities were
spared the cut and others were cut? I mean how, what was your. . .I guess, formula for
determining who gets the proverbial axe and who doesn't?
MR. HUNT: We tried to be fair and across the board in terms of organizations. So for instance
the MRA, we also cut. And so it's not just the Wailuku Main Street Association. Any
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organization that, that we support with money, we felt, well, we were told to cut our
budget 10 percent, it just seems fair to cut everybody's 10 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. So that doesn't include the Professional Services
though? I guess is that something totally, I'm just trying to get an understanding 'cause
when I look at this spreadsheet, you know, some guys are being kept flat and others are,
you know, getting cut.
MR. HUNT: The, the Professional Services isn't an organization, it's just services that, that we
contract out.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh. So -MR. HUNT: So for instance, the court reporter, et cetera.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So like the General Plan Update--even though the
GPACs done, they're appropriated 100,000 last year. And then now that the GPAC is
done you're going to appropriate the same amount?
MS. AOKI: The, the 100,000 for this year is to, is what we've sort of budgeted in our minds as
60,000 to complete the second phase, to do a contract for the second phase of the Hana
Community Plan and then 40,000 for other miscellaneous expenses. So last year,
100,000 was allocated with that same--60,000 for the first phase of the Hana Community
Plan So we're sort of, we're, we're budgeting it in phases.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. That, that's the explanation I need.
MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
MS. AOKI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So it adds more clarity. And I know you mentioned the
explanation for the Cultural Resource Management. This was to assist private
landowners to understand the historical significance of their properties and we're going to
allocate the same amount? Am I correct with that assessment?
MR. HUNT: On the $50,000?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
MR. HUNT: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Okay. I'm just trying to understand what the priorities
of the Department is. So now my fmal question, Mr Chair, on the Tri-Isle Main Street,
you know, we received a letter from Mr. Min who is the Chair. And of course most if all
Council Members know Mr. Min was the Planning Director. So he's basically signing
his name to this organization about, with regards to their productivity. If I can just ask
you pointblank, Mr. Director, do you have any problems with this organization in terms
of performance? Have they met all your objectives? They've worked with you well?
And would you have a problem if, if this funding was increased from the 243 back to 270
or another figure? And I know you had to look at areas to cut 10 percent, but my, my
issue here is performance and, you know, and you mentioned about the community plan
process starting. I know this organization has been very involved with community
planning in our community. They got involved with the Haiku Strategic Plan. They've
been very visible at the General Plan meetings with the GPAC. So your take on this
performance from the organization?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. HUNT: . . . I think the organization performs a good service to the community. I, I think
the communication and accountability between them and us could be improved. We've
asked for information and they seem reluctant to deliver it to us. We've asked for
specifications and they don't want to break it down for us. There's, in my opinion,
there's a reluctance for them to have us oversee them, and yet it's in our budget and if
that money is somehow not spent correctly who's going to be held accountable? It's in
the Planning Department's budget. So your, your question about our relationship--I think
it could be improved. We're working on that. It's gotten better in the last year, we hope
it'll continue to get better. In terms of whether to restore their 10 percent, I wouldn't
have a problem with that as long as you don't cut something else 10 percent to make up
for it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And, you know, thank you for bringing up the
communication problem. Because this is the first time I've heard, you know, the
Department having a problem with communication between this entity and yours. And
this has been, you've been with the Department for a number years, since what, four
years? Five years, Mr., Mr. Director?
MR. HUNT: Little over two years.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Two years, oh.
MR. HUNT: It seems like four.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It seems longer . . .(laughter). . . Yeah, okay. And, and since
you came onboard that problem has existed, I guess, that you've been, I guess when you
first served as Deputy?
MR. HUNT: I, I think, I think both the Tri-Isle and the Department are working to have a better
relationship. We're committed to having a good relationship with them. It appears that
they're committed to having a good relationship with us. So I'm confident and hopeful
that we can continue improving that relationship. But to be honest with you it, it needs
some improvement.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, the good thing about it at least things are on the
upswing. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Director. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, the Chair is going to call for a recess up till
11 o'clock. And we'll finish up the Planning Department. We, we do have Equipment,
which I don't see any problem with. . .and also they have for grants. . .one, two, three,
four, five grants. And, and we've already touched bases, or touched base on some of the
grants this morning. So we'll take a break, recess up till 11 o'clock this morning. Soon
after we complete the Planning Department, we do have the Fire Department, and we'll
start the process once we complete with the Planning Department. This meeting is in
recess. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

10:49 a.m.
11:01 a.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Members, we just completed the A and B accounts--and if you have any
questions regarding those accounts, if you can direct it to the Chair, we'll get information
back from the Department. The C account, Members, which is Equipment...
. . . I'll start off with, Member Victorino, if you have any questions regarding the
equipment being requested by the Department at this time?
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . The C account at this time, yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: C account.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . No. None at this time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr Chair, just to digress for one moment, before the break, I
had asked a question in regard to the special account that was in Planning where the fees
were previously deposited. In 2004, there was a special revenue trust and agency account
which was listed. . .you know, in, in our rates and fees and a budget ordinance.
Sometime between 2004 and 2005, that disappeared . . . (laughter). . . So if you could be
so kind as to make a formal request to the Administration to find out between 2004-2005
what happened to that fund? Because I do not recall, and there was no budget ordinance
at the end of the fiscal cycle where we would have taken a legislative action that would
have done away with that fund--that I'm aware of. Because next year in 2005, it just
appears that the fees go into the General Fund then. So there was a fund, but I just would
like to, I think it's important that legislatively we know where the fund went and what
action was taken.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll send a letter to Administration -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --regarding your question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho'ohalahala? This is equipment requests.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: I'll pass at this time. I'll pass, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, Chair. I heard Ms. Aoki's explanation and I'm satisfied.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, the last item that we need to review is. . .let's
see...
. . . I think they have some grants that we need to review. The Certified Local
Government. . .Program, the Coastal Zone Management Program, the FEMA Flood Map
Study, the Hawaii Ocean Resource Management Study, as well as the Economic
Development Administration, the Capital Improvement Project which is the municipal
parking lot. And I think the Department already touched on some of these programs
that's being budgeted for the year 2010. But I'll go directly to the Department to explain
each of the program, in fact explain the first one and then I'll ask the Members for
questions if they have any.
MS. AOKI: . . . Okay. I'll start with the Certified Local Government Program. The 50,000 that
was requested that we got last year is currently being used and I can give you an update
on that. The Lanai B-CT multi-property historic district is 100 percent complete. The
Lanai Senior Center HAEBS level 2 is 25 percent complete. The Wo Hing Catalogue of
records, plaques and couplets is 40 percent complete. And Pookela Church HAEBS
level 1 data sheets is 25 percent. We are not requesting, we are not getting any CLG
funds for Fiscal Year '08, oh I'm sorry, Fiscal Year '10.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member, Victorino, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Just refresh my memory. The Certified Local Government
funds rotate? Is that correct?
MS. AOKI: . . . Yes. Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So we, that's why don't get them every year -MS. AOKI: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --we just are on a rotational basis?
MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And they come from the State?
MS. AOKI: Yes, they do.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
MS. AOKI: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The Coastal Zone Management Program, Department?
MS. AOKI: . . . Coastal Zone Management, this is strictly used for salaries and wages, and we
are requesting 222,248 this year.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . . Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Department, can you briefly
explain what the personnel do for Coastal Zone, is that just a part of the. . .permit
process?
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MR. HUNT: It's essentially to review development within the Special Management Area. So
we have planners who focus on that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Director. Mahalo, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And just to elaborate, how many people are
staffed in that program?
MR. HUNT: I believe it's three planners and one clerk.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Four all together, then? Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just read I believe it was a viewpoint on Sunday that under
Coastal Zone Management there was a bill I guess at the State Legislature to do away I
guess with review under Coastal Zone Management Act. What, if that bill should go
through, I mean obviously . . . (laughter). . . you have a program to cover it, but if that law
is enacted or there is some kind of legislative action taken at the State level, how would
that impact your program?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. HUNT: I think it would have a dramatic impact, a severe impact, and we've been
monitoring that bill. Apparently the bill was deferred recently, and so we're going to
keep an eye on it and make sure it doesn't resurface. A lot of the other neighboring
counties don't, or the other counties including Oahu don't have as a strong SMA as we
do. So it doesn't seem as important to them and it's something that as a Maui community
we need to remember that and keep an eye on that SMA bill. We, we have been tracking
it and we'll continue to track it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and when you say "tracking", did you or the
Administration send in opposition to the bill?
MR. HUNT: We, we were preparing to and then we got an e-mail from the Office of Planning
that said the bill had been filed or deferred, at least.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Deferred?
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MR. HUNT: And so at this point, we said let's wait and see if it resurfaces rather than sending
in comments now. . .if it resurfaces. But yeah we were, we were getting ready to
comment on it.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. The next -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah. Why was the money for Operations eliminated?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Department?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. HUNT: . . . We...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For the Coastal Zone Management?
MR. HUNT: I, I don't know. I could ask our division head to respond.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well...
MR. HUNT: We could response on paper.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How are they going to operate?
MR. HUNT: . . . We have Clayton Yoshida coming down to, to try and answer that for us.
NOTE: Pause while Mr. Yoshida approached the floor.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Mr. Yoshida?
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MR. YOSHIDA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Councilmember Nishiki, the Department did
receive a grant from the Ocean Recreation, through the Ocean Recreation Management
Plan or ORMP. . .funds in FY, FY '08. It was like a one-time grant. It was through a
competitive grant process.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And. . .how much was it for and is it going to be applied?
MR. YOSHIDA: Yes. I believe it was for $85,000. We are trying to couple that efforts on that
grant with, if we are funded in FY '10 for the update of the Coastal Erosion Rate Plans,
Coastal Erosion Rate, Hazard Rate Maps. . .to produce the product. We are working with
the Maui Coastal Land Trust and the University of Hawaii Geology Department on this
ORMP grant.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So that's not guaranteed. Tell me this, if you're $50,000 short
in operations what happens?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. YOSHIDA: . . . Well, if we are $50,000 short in operations. . .um...
. . . Well, I guess the, the monies are picked up through, I mean the, basically the grant
goes to pay for salaries and wages and. . .fringe benefits. A portion of it, a small portion
goes, I think we were proposing for premium pay.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So you're not concerned about it if you're $50,000 short?
MR. YOSHIDA: Um. . .no. We. . .as long as we're funded at that amount through the Office of
Planning--if that, if those monies stay intact with the Legislature and the Congress.
NOTE: Silence.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . I guess that's how he's going to operate it, that's how he's
going to operate it. I'm just. . .baffled.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . . Mr. Yoshida, this is a grant program administered by the State?
. . . Would you know?
MR. HUNT: Excuse me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Is the program, the grant money comes from the State or Federal
government?
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MR. HUNT: The CZM is State money that originates from the Federal government.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. So if you don't receive any grants, then the position
disappears?
MR. HUNT: Well, there's salaries which covers the positions, and then there's operations. And
it sounds like we're having trouble answering the question--what's happening with the
134,000 that's being cut in operations. And we can do more research and, and try and
answer that question better.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
. . . Yeah. I'll have Staff prepare a letter in regards to the question that Mr. Nishiki asked.
Okay. Moving on to Federal Emergency Management Agency.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair? Chair'? Just one...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Just along the same lines. If you look at the
bottom of 4-11, I mean 14-11 on the Details. In the Operations, you have $534,000,
FY '09, and then you're showing zero also in, in 2010. . .for a half million dollars. So is
this also the, the, reflected as, as grant income?
MR. HUNT: . . . That would be an accumulation of all the -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Of all of...
MR. HUNT: --above on that page.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the amount that was, that is, your previous is
just a portion of this then?
MR. HUNT: Yes. The 134,000 would be a portion of the 534,000. And then the others there's
from FEMA and HORMP.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. We'll ask that question for --52-
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --each of the. . .grant programs. So the FEMA Flood Map Study.
Mr. Victorino, questions on that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Well, are you saying that we're completed and
that's why you're not having anything? And actually if I read this correct you're
subtracting it out? Is that part of your budget cutbacks?
MS. AOKI: No. It's not that we're subtracting an amount.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. AOKI: It's, it's asking you for a change amount between Fiscal Year '09 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MS. AOKI: --and Fiscal Year '10.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MS. AOKI: So it's just that in '09 we got all these grants and in '10 we're not getting them. So
it's not that, it's not that we're, we're just not getting the same amount of income that we
did last year. We're not getting that amount of grant.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So what you're saying, we're not going to get anything?
MS. AOKI: We're not getting anything for the ones that have a negative, except for CZM, the
Coastal Zone Management is just a different amount.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And so does that mean that for the Federal funds,
Federal Emergency Management, FEMA's Flood Program we're done?
MS. AOKI: That means that we were given a grant of $250,000 -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MS. AOKI: --to update these maps and we've used that and they're pretty much completed.
Right. And whatever rest is going to be done, I understand the Federal government's
doing anyway, not the County.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So, so from this point forward, the Federal
government will take over and complete whatever maps are not completed as far as -- 53 -
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MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --our County is concerned?
MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All right. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: None . . .(end of tape 2B — 11:18 a.m.). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. The next grant program is the Hawaii Ocean Resources
Management Plan Study. Department? . . .(inaudible). . .
MS. AOKI: So with that, oh I'm sorry, with that grant it's what Mr. Yoshida explained--that we
are expending about $87,000 on two different contracts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And this was State funded? This was State?
MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so again same, same, same deal? We had it, we're
not going to get it for this coming fiscal year?
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MS. AOKI: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Department, basically these
monies for this study, it goes to study what as far as ocean resources?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Department?
MS. AOKI: Uh. . .the grants, I'm trying to think what the grants were. I know one of them is
actually a grant with the University of Hawaii that's going to start the process with the
update of the shoreline maps which we've funded in here, we've asked for an additional
100...100,000. So in order to get that process going and because, like you say, we have
to update all the different areas on the island, $100,000 is not going to be enough. So
part of this grant was used towards updating the shoreline erosion maps.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. And what was the other part used for?
MS. AOKI: That I would have to ask staff if they know.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And I'm just trying to get a sense of -MS. AOKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --what kind of work or study is done under this title and this
funding. I mean do they do a study on the ocean reefs? Is it include coastal fishes?
MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You know I, is there any idea where this money goes
besides updating the coastal erosion maps?
MS. AOKI: I know there was another grant given, but I would have to research that and -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. If you can get us --55-
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MS. AOKI: --get back to you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --that information?
MS. AOKI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And the last one is the Economic Development
Administration, this is a Capital Improvement Project. It's also a grant program.
Department?
MS. AOKI: We have this grant from Economic Development Administration with the Federal
government for 1 2 million for the planning and design of the Wailuku Municipal Parking
Lot. Part of the grant agreement is that the County kick in 25 percent which is why we're
asking for $400,000 in our budget from the County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So this, this 1 6 million with our 400,000 is just for
design?
MS. AOKI: Planning and design.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Planning and design.
MS. AOKI: And, you know, all environmental documents that would need to be prepared.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: All the various aspects of, this is not construction yet?
MS. AOKI: This is not construction.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. All right. Thank you, Mr. Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Department, when you get grant
funding like this, is it specific to the project or can you use surplus funds for other
projects?
MS. AOKI: No. It is very, very specific to this project. Jo-Anne Inamasu and the Mayor went
to Seattle to apply for the grant and I got the grant on, on Friday and it's very specific on
what the funds will be used for--that it's planning and design, that it's not construction.
Part of it will be used for personnel, to hire a project coordinator/manager to manage the
project.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So when you apply for a grant like this, do you have to
have all the specific numbers in it already? And the question, the reason I ask that
question if, most likely you'll use it all up but what happens if you don't use it up? Does
it go back?
MS. AOKI: I would imagine it would go back. But I -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. AOKI: --would and to, to get a fair and accurate response to you, I would have to get back
to you in writing with, from Jo-Anne Inamasu who unfortunately isn't here today, she's
on the mainland so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. That would be helpful. Thank you, Department.
Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. HUNT: A lot of times, these grants you have to submit the bills for -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. HUNT: --and so you simply don't have bills to submit for so the money never comes to
you in the first place.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Thank you. Director, and then just earlier
when you talked about, you know, smart growth and stuff, is, is this a project that, that
you're going to implement that in your design? Designing of, I don't know what the
specific plans are.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. HUNT: Smart growth is one of those terms that has a lot of different connotations to it. I
think there will be elements of smart growth in this parking structure. I can't say
absolutely that it would be a "smart growth parking structure" in and of itself and hit all
ten of the items or whatever. But the idea that it would bring people to Wailuku, from
there can walk. They just park their car once in the structure and then walk to the various
shops and restaurants, et cetera, services, professional services. I think that would be
consistent with smart, smart growth concepts.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Mixed use?
MR. HUNT: The mixed use--and that was part of the discussion on the preferred alternative and
there was some discussion that there should be commercial on the ground floor of the
actual parking structure. I believe the fmal preferred alternative that came out of that
public process was to put the commercial next to it on the adjacent lot so it would serve
the same area. The, the parking structures is in the interior of the block. Except for Pili
Street which is very small, it doesn't front any of the four main streets. And so the idea
of having commercial uses on the ground floor is somewhat of a challenge. And I
believe the compromise was to put them out on Vineyard where they would face, be
directly fronting Vineyard Street.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And residential?
MR. HUNT: I don't believe there's, I shouldn't say, I'm not sure.
MS. AOKI: This, this grant, just to clarify, is strictly for the parking structure only. It is only
for the structure. It is not for that remnant parcel--on what the County plans to do with it
whether it be commercial, residential, what have you. So the grant is only for the
building, the parking, the parking building.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I realize that, but I think if you're going
to do a planning and design, then I'm asking whether or not these elements are being
thought of --58-
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MS. AOKI: Included.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --whether it's included in the funding or not, you
know. It wouldn't make sense to just go ahead and, you know, plan in a vacuum -MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --as though nothing else mattered.
MS. AOKI: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . So I mean I'm just hoping that that's what's
going to, I'm not familiar with the project itself but looking at where, looking forward to,
toward a more sustainable communities--that I hope it, a major project like this would
have elements of that included in it so.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Is there any, anything in the future in regards to looking at
all the different alternatives and bringing it to a Committee on the Council?
MR. HUNT: That was our intent. Our intention was to renew the public process and where it
got left off last time.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. HUNT: And I believe it was at Council to present the preferred alternative -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Good.
MR. HUNT: --with the other alternatives and there could be discussion.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
MR. HUNT: Perhaps revisions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Then we can have more discussion on that proposed project.
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And I just want to fmd out because I was discussing
this with someone who, they're a stakeholder in Wailuku and they are more than willing
to work with the Administration to actually implement, you know, do planning and
design and make the parking structure a reality. What I wanted to fmd out is because
you've got the money earmarked or at least appearing the way that it is in the form of a
grant, would that preclude this individual from actually implementing that plan? Or
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would it still be something that the way that this grant is structured, would that still be
something that could accommodate that kind of a, I guess, an offer?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MS. AOKI: I'm, I'm, I don't know, Council Member. With the way the grant is structured,
what we're doing right now is part of the MRA money, we're actually using to offset the
money that's being included in this line item grant for the personnel part of it. So once
we hire a project coordinator, that project coordinator along with, with a member of our
staff will be the one responsible for following through with this project. As for the
specifics on what you can and cannot do with the grant, like how, if you're asking how it
can be used or if we have to, I would imagine we would go out for RFPs on getting
people to submit bids on planning, on design, et cetera. So once the RFPs are advertised
this person would be more than welcome to respond to the RFP.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. 'Cause I'm just looking at it from a, a logical, you
know, perspective, and this individual also did a project, I believe, for the State where
they built a school.
MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And they're willing to do the same thing so before we get too
far along and hire all these people, I just want to understand -MS. AOKI: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --if there's someway that, you know, we could just say okay
look, you know, go straight to the RFP process instead of us hiring somebody to oversee
a project that we may not really need. And I'm not saying the "project" that we wouldn't
need, but the personnel, you know, go down one road when we have this other
opportunity. I, I will visit with this individual. I know I gave the information to Finance
last week also, but I really don't want to take any options off the table at this point.
Because if it would expedite the process of getting this project going I just think we
really, really need to look at what would achieve that goal the, in the, in the most efficient
. . . (laughter). . . way and also the most timely way. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, that's all we have for the Planning Department
this morning. Yeah. And if you do have any questions regarding A, B, C account, as
well as the grant programs, if you can forward your questions to the Chair, we'll get
answers from the Department. At this time the Chair would like to thank both
Director Hunt as well Deputy Director. . .what's your last name now, Aoki.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(laughter). . . So that concludes the Planning Department as far as
their 2010 budget proposal. So, Members, if you can stay, you know, in the Chambers,
we'll switch departments now and we'll go into the Fire Department. If you need to go
use bathroom, five minutes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . Recess?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chair?.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Your recess?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No recess.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No. So -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --when do you plan to take the lunch break?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: At about noon.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So wouldn't it be easier to just take it now and then come
back after lunch and, and take the whole department?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Unless you guys want to come back at 1:00?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Fine.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's fine. That's fine.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Not a problem.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One o'clock?
COUNCILMEMBER

: . . . (Inaudible).. .

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: One o'clock? Okay. Fine. So we'll take a recess, we'll go to lunch
and we'll be back here -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: One.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --at one o'clock.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: One o'clock.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And then we'll go with the Fire Department.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Perfect.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So meeting is in recess till 1 o'clock. . . . (gavel).. .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

11:31 a.m.
1:03 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened. Good afternoon, Members. This afternoon, we do have the Department of
Fire. . .with us to review their 2009 [sic] Fiscal Year Budget. I'd just like to introduce
the, the Department personnel that are here. We do have Chief Jeff Murray, Deputy
Chief Robert Shimada, as well as Assistant Chief Allan Cordeiro. Good afternoon, guys.
At this time, the Chair would like to have Mr. Pablo provide us with some comments
regarding the Department's request for 2010. Mr. Pablo?
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla, and good afternoon, Members. You should have a
five-page handout before you which summarizes the Department of Fire and Public
Safety. On Page 1 of the handout is an overview of, of the Department itself. The
Department of Fire and Public Safety gets its funding entirely from the General Fund. It
has four programs, the Administration, Training Program, Fire/Rescue Operations and
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Fire Prevention Program. On Page 1 you'll see a comparison of the Fiscal Year '10
budget request versus the Fiscal Year '09 Council-adopted budget. As you can see, the
change is roughly 478,000 over the prior year. However if you look at the rest of the
page, we go into Expansion Positions, there's none; and Equipment, there's four trucks,
two pumpers, and a SUV, and a generator. And that makes up about $665,000 of the
budget. When you take this equipment off the Fiscal Year '10 budget request, you'll see
that the Department came in at an operational budget at less than last year's. On the
following pages, and I'll let Chief Murray and his staff go through each of these pages
with you, we have a separate page for each program. Again it provides an overview of
the Program Budget. It provides the Salaries and Wages and Authorized EP Count. And
it summarize the operational expenses. We've listed anything that would be a change of
$5,000 more or less than last year's Budget. And the bottom of the summary you'll see
the summary of equipment being requested for that year. With that opening, I'll hand it
over to Chief Jeff Murray. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Before the Chief make any comments, the Chair would like to
recommend, not "recommend". . .as far as the Department's budget, the Chair would go
in this following manner--we'll take each program, A, B, C account so that we don't get
lost in the shuffle. So at this time the Chair would like to have the Chief provide us with
some opening comments. And, Chief, you know, soon after, after you give your opening
comments, we'll go directly into the Administration/Maintenance Program.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair Aloha and good afternoon -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Aloha.
MR. MURRAY: --Council Members. First of all, I'd like to start by thanking my budget
staff--the two gentlemen right next to me, Acting Assistant Chief David Thyre, who's in
the audience and our Administrative Assistant Cindy Kagoshima for helping us put
together this proposed budget. Thank you for this opportunity for us to come and discuss
our. . .proposed budget for 2009-2010. We also like to thank the Mayor and her team for
their assistance that they have helped us during this process. Presented before you, you
will see a comprehensive analysis of our budget--always keeping in mind our mission.
We all know that we are in a austere economic times and our team took a proactive
approach to, in addressing the Department's needs and the community's needs as
well. . .and to be as fiscally responsible as possible. One of the notes that we have for
you is in our organizational chart, we made a change, it hasn't been signed. . .yet. Our
Inventory Maintenance Technician was moved under our Business. . .Administrator.
. . . So we humbly ask for your continued support in our proposed budget. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, if you can turn to your Program Budget on
Page 9-, starting, starting from 9-3 and on your Details starting from 7-3? We'll begin
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with the Administration Maintenance Program. And, Chief, if you want to expound on,
on that particular budget, and from there once you complete, we'll ask the Members to
ask questions of the Department. So, Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Excuse me, Chair. What, what page was that again please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Administration Maintenance Program.
. . . On the Program Budget. . .9-3. On the Details, 7-3.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
. . . Before you, we have the Administration/Maintenance Program budget. As you can
see, our Salaries and Wages. . .0perations and Equipment for a total change of
16.4 percent.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MURRAY: . . . I'll go ahead and take any questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Member Victorino, you have any questions for the
Department at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Under A account, Salaries and Wages.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: A, only Salaries and Wages, yeah. Okay. Thank you.
And first of all before I get started, Chief, I would like to thank you and your Department
for the good service and the good work you provide for this community. We might as
well start with the positives, and then we can go into the other stuff later, yeah.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you very much. Again I guess the Fiscal Officer
and Lead Fire Equipment. . .Mechanics, I guess those two are now, what, full-time,
full-year? Or, 'cause I see a sizeable increase in the Fiscal Officer. It went from 48,000
to 65,000. So is, was that original funding just for eight months, like a lot of times we
were told?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. Yes, that was.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the same for the Lead Fire Engine Equipment
Mechanic?
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MR. MURRAY: Yes, it was.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So that you pretty much...
. . . And then I saw the per diem pay, you know, and I know you guys that's pretty much
out of your control because a lot of that is, is, is overtime and stuff like that. But again
this year you guys putting down $65,000, you're anticipating $50,000 more or
300 percent increase, you know, on the Premium Pay.
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So is that anticipating. . .I guess, hopefully not, but
a heavy fire season is that, is that what predicates that big increase?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it does. We are planning, as you all know, we've had a very, very rainy
season. This is one of the winters that we're normally used to and we are anticipating a
high fire load.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. And just so that the public understands that,
you know, you just don't Premium Pay just because you want it. It's because you
anticipate the possibility of that occurring as far as you folks being called out for major
brushfires throughout the County?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chief, just a fast question. On the 2009 budget, the
$14,845, I presume that this is the actuals up to whenever this budget was created?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, Chair, it was. If you look at the previous year, 2008, it's about 65,000 as
well, the actual. So we're just trying to keep in beat with that and hopefully we don't
have to exceed that at all.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Fine. Thank you. Chair Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And I'm going to continue on from
Mr. Victorino's questions regarding in particular those two positions that he referenced.
One was the Fiscal Officer and the other was the Lead Fire Equipment Mechanic
. . . The Fiscal Officer's position, that one is currently filled?
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MR. MURRAY: No, it is not officially. Officially, it will be filled on the 1 st of April.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: That was the, actually what was the title of that position?
MR. MURRAY: The actual title is, it's a little different than it says here, it is the Business
Administrator I. That is at an EM-03 level.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And that particular position in terms, you know, on the vacancy
list that we're looking at, under the annual pay, it wasn't, it wasn't listed. So when you,
but when you look at the Details for the Fiscal Officer, we see a salary there.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: What's in the Details is the salary or the wages that this individual will
be paid?
MR. MURRAY: In the Details is exactly what this individual will be paid.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. So. . .actually what was in the vacancy list was an EM-03. This
one that we're looking at in the Details is an EM-05. So what is the status of this
particular position in terms of wage?
MR. MURRAY: It is a EM-03.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: It's an EM-03?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And these position, these positions that. . .apparently it's when
they were vacated was at a higher level or created a higher level and when you're filling
them in you're filling it with somebody who is not in that upper level?
MR. MURRAY: Well, through the process of, with working with Department of Personnel
Services, when we did the classification and the job duties, they were unable to justify an
EM-05 based on, on many different things. So we compromised that, it was an EM-03,
you know, with their great help. . .we were able to identify the responsibilities for that
person, and we both agree that that would be the position that they would be in.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And the same would be with the Lead Fire Equipment
Mechanic?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. The Lead Fire Equipment Mechanic is, is basically the same but we
haven't filled that as, as of yet. That's in the testing. . .process right now.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And for the additional vacants for your Fire Fighters, primarily
Is and Hs, the SR ratings is all--for the Fire Fighter Is, it's SR-17E and for the Fire
Fighter Hs, it's 19 and 21 Es. Is that where they normally start?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: . . . Okay. And then, Chief, can you tell me this particular budget,
based on your Salaries and Wages. . .does this, does, does your budget projects meeting
the goals and objectives of your Department's strategic plan?
MR. MURRAY: Yes it does at this time. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Because in the Details you, you really never really referenced
the strategic plan's goals and objectives. And when the strategic plan was provided to us,
this was the premise of your Department's future.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So for us it's hard to follow along where you've, where you've come
when, when your goals and objectives, you know, it really does not include how you have
addressed the strategic plan's goals and objectives that was presented to us. Because
when I look at your Accomplishments for Calendar Year 2008, one of your
accomplishments is received an SUV for the Assistant Chief's operations. That, to me, is
not an accomplishment. Something referencing the strategic plan in terms of the
Department meeting your goals and objectives would have been an accomplishment.
And I just, we just don't get it. We just don't see where you've come from 2000 and,
well, this update 2004, up until 2009. And we really don't know where you've been.
Because one of the priorities for the update was your BCs, something that's still in the
air.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So I don't know what your priorities are. When you came to us, the
Department came to us and highlighted the need of this strategic plan, which was a
priority, and somehow from then until now, I don't know what happened to the
continuum of addressing this plan. Can you comment, please?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Department?
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
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. . . We apologize for not addressing that specifically to the goals and objectives of that
strategic plan, but we are on mark with those ideas as well.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. And lastly, lastly one of the, one of the goals and
objectives that was highlighted throughout your strategic plan was the need for labor and
management to communicate in order to address safety and health issues of the, the men
in the Department, men and women in the Department. In putting your budget together,
has it been the white shirts doing the budget projections or has it been with, I don't want
to say "rank and file", but. . .yeah, in partnership with say the union people as well as
rank and file?
MR. MURRAY: Prior to the building of the budget -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: --we did not have, we had each individual division which they are a part of, but
we did not present it to them till after the fact.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, I just want to state for the record that I do have
a son in the Fire Department stationed in Wailea. So in case there's any questions of
conflict, I'd like to state it for the record.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . My first question has to do with the vacancies. And I'm
curious whether this is updated or not. I think there seems to be like three, six, nine, ten,
fifteen, twenty. . .a lot of vacancies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . There, there is a lot of vacancies. But we were taking the
Administration/Maintenance Program, and what the Chief had earlier stated, that there's
two vacancies that are now being considered to be filled. One is the Business
Administrator which took the place of the Fiscal Officer, and the second one is the Lead
Fire Equipment Mechanic So if you could pose your questions to that particular
program, the Chair would appreciate that. And then further down the line we're going to
be taking--I know there's a lot of vacancies in regards to Fire Fighter I, II, and III. So
when we come to those programs then, you know, I think you're heading towards that
direction in regards to your questions.

-68-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 30, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So this is, this is what the, when do you want to deal with the
vacancies? Not in the A account?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. When we come to that particular program. There's four
program in the Department. . .one is the Administration/Maintenance Program, the other
one is the Training Program, and then I think most of your questions will be . . . (end of
tape 3A — 1:21 p.m.). . . that's another a program with, within the Department, and the
last program would be the Fire Prevention Program. So most of the vacancies that you
see probably gonna end up in Fire/Rescue Operations.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'll just wait.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. And so, Chief, currently in your
budget, you don't have any requests for expansion positions?
MR. MURRAY: Currently, no.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And...
. . . listed in the handout I think one position or a position that was just mentioned by
the Committee Chair. . .and I believe that's a Lead Fire Equipment Mechanic
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: That's with Administration?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. It's under our program.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And. . .I was trying to look at the reason why, oh
here, recruitment process proceeding, applications screened, exam needs to be given. Did
your lead mechanic retire or did he move up in position?
MR. MURRAY: No. This was a newly created position that was done in 2008, in that budget
season. And we had an applicant went through the process, was ready to hire and he
turned it down. And going through the process again and we're back at square one again
with the testing.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: So we're almost there.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So how many mechanics are in that section?
MR. MURRAY: Right now there's two -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Two?
MR. MURRAY: --plus this opening, so that would make it three.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Three? And so the, the highest position in that group is
what, a supervisory mechanic?
MR. MURRAY: This Lead Fire Mechanic, yes. That would be the highest.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: This Lead Fire Mechanic?
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So how, how did that, tell me again how did that
position become vacant. . .that you're trying to fill it now?
MR. MURRAY: That was an expansion position in Fiscal Year 2008.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. The first mechanic that worked for the Fire
Department, what happened to his position? Because...
MR. MURRAY: We filled it with the current. There's two...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So this position is higher than his?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. I see. Okay. That's all I have. Thank you, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, we're just looking at the positions at this
time? . . .(inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: No. Actually Salaries and Wages, which also include positions yeah?
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MR. MURRAY: Certain...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The A account, actually.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then Performance Measures?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Performance measures as far as Salaries and Wages for this
Administration Program would be. . .questions -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that if you want to come up with questions -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. In the Administration and -CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KAI-10' OHALAHALA: --Maintenance Program then?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. In the Summary [sic] document on
Page 9-3, Chief, under your Performance Measures. . .you have listed several different
bullets for each of the Fiscal Years '08, '09, and '10. And I have a question about your
first bullet which says that the percentage of employees introduced to goals and
objectives. . .that you're projecting to, to reduce that?
MR. MURRAY: . . . Based on the availability of actually getting it done. As you will see, as we
move further on the program, we have that position--specifically that deals with strategic
plan and accreditation--is open at this time. We are in the process of re-describing the
position so that it has a little more responsibilities. So not knowing when that would be
filled, we might not be able to hit the 100 percent projection. So we're trying to be
straight about the percentage.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the same would apply then to
the next one, percentage of goals and objectives completed?
MR. MURRAY: . . . Yeah. According to the strategic plan it's going to take a while before we
can achieve all of those goals and some of them may not be attained until we do a revisit
of that program. So we're just trying to give realistic accounts of...
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But you're, you're confident that you're
at 100 percent at this time?
MR. MURRAY: . . . During our process of taking over during transition last year there, there
was a presentation of the objectives and goals. . .during that time that was 100 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I'm just, I was just curious as to why the
numbers would go down rather than, than...
MR. MURRAY: We're hoping that it doesn't go down. We want to give an actual report.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Chair.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, thank you, Chair. Just one quick question and it's the same
place where Sol was looking on Page 9-3 on the Performance Measures. I'm interested
in the statistic about percentage of personnel drug and alcohol tested. And I noticed that
that's 50 percent and is, is there a requirement that everyone is tested or how does this
work?
MR. MURRAY: . . . It's a random drug testing policy and you, and. . .the amounts of personnel
that need to be tested come out of Department, Department of Personnel Services to our
administrator.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. So they select the people that need to be tested? It isn't
like you just do it all on a regular basis?
MR. MURRAY: No. That's, that's not the way the program is written.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. Well, that explains the 50 percent. Thank you very much.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Kind of confusing, right?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I would have thought that if you're doing a drug test, then you do
everybody and random.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: But, you know...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: The way I look at this -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --is that, you know, percentage of personnel drug and alcohol tested
would be 50 percent of the Department and the projection would be 100 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Oh, well.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Right. I understand. Mr. Molina?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. No questions on this area, but I have questions in the
other programs. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Um...
. . . Yeah. The Chair had one question. In regards to, I know most of the personnel. . .I
guess most of your vehicles are over 10,000 GVW right?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And how often do we test our personnel in regards to getting their
public utility license? Every year? Or is there a set time?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(Inaudible). . .
MR. MURRAY: . . . Currently, I'm, I'm not sure of the exact numbers that we have in our
Department. There were a lot of people that were tested on CDL when, when that
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program was instituted. And there, there's some people that don't have that now because
the Department is exempt.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Okay. Yeah, my understanding is that when you go for your
PUC license, you know, you also get tested yeah, medically.
MR. MURRAY: We still do take that test, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: You still do take that test?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Just to add some information. I don't know if the
Fire Department is the same, but the rest of the County departments. . .when you get
random selected to go to an exam.. .like they say, it's done by DPS, but it's
computer-generated. And sometimes same people get, their names get pulled where
others don't. But it's not, you don't test everybody -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --because of the labor contracts.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, we're going into the B account,
Operations. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. I guess the question I would have for
you, Chief, although on, on your total operations, Fire Control your total budget was little
bit less than last year. Is there just shuffling of monies because I see some went up, some
went down. And like other departments, are you making a more realistic database on
where these actual expenditures are occurring?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. That was one thing that we picked up early in the game, we noticed that
we had charges going to different areas. We wanted to pinpoint so that way we could
actually measure savings regardless if it has to do with conservation or, you know,
response to those areas. We wanted to be sure that we could actually get the dollar from
exactly where it went. It's a better way of accounting.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. 'Cause that, you know, again when you look
these over, I see money, you know, I mean figures changing up and down, but yet the
bottom line was a little bit less in that area. And then when you go down below, you're
about 90,000 total more then last year. And I guess the biggest change was your
Materials and Supplies, I guess Auto Parts.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Is that due, that and Small Tools or no, wait, I'm sorry,
correction, Tires & Tubes.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. That's just dealing with more material, more
equipment and older equipment?
MR. MURRAY: Well, we have an array of equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: And, and Chief Shimada will go over that. . .soon. What happened was we had
to identify the money that we were spending and actually get it to the sub-object code that
we wanted it from so we can track it a whole lot better. Plus with the rising cost of those
petroleum-based products, rubber, and what have you, we made those identifications and
actually put it and prioritized the areas that they needed to be.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. I think that's, you know, a good clarification. And
if it makes your and, and the Department's overall accountability a lot more accurate per
subobject codes and actually supplies and use then, then that's fine. I have no questions
as far as that. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Chairman, my question is going to refer right
back to the Lead Mechanic Equipment [sic], I mean the Lead Fire Equipment Mechanic,
because the Chief will perhaps tell us how this position will impact this particular
Operations category in saving the Department monies in addressing the maintenance
needs. Because I'm hoping that it is gonna address the maintenance needs for the three
islands. Can you tell me...
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it is.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And, and...
MR. MURRAY: Thank you very much for that question. I'm glad you brought that up. Well,
early on we recognized that there was a shortfall in the Maintenance Program. Not sure
of all the reasons or they were overworked or what you have. We had a bunch of
contracts that were, we had to outsource in order to get it done in a timely fashion and,
and not cost us so much money down the line. But we've set up a program that will
efficiently manage all the maintenance of all apparatus and, and vehicles that we have.
And through this program, we knew, we identified shortfalls and we went after it, and
that's where we made the adjustments. We tried to do all of the adjustments that we had
within ourselves so we didn't ask for more money. But in, in '10 we had to. But we
identified that. . .by instituting this program, in the long run it would save the County
hundreds of thousands of dollars and ultimately keep those vehicles safely operating so
that they can respond and do the job that they're intended to do.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. With this Lead Mechanic then, the, the majority of the existing
apparatuses are, are fairly new? Or are you still got some old ones?
MR. MURRAY: Over half of our fleet is, is new. Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: What is "old"? How, how many years is "old"?
MR. MURRAY: We have our oldest frontline fire apparatus, right now is 14 years.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Fourteen?
MR. MURRAY: Fourteen years.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: That's not hours, yeah?
MR. MURRAY: No.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: . . .(Laughter). . . Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Fourteen years.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. MURRAY: And we are in the process of actually doing the replacement now from the
budget that we had last year. So we thank you -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay.
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MR. MURRAY: --for that as well.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Today, today's equipment, today's apparatuses comes with high tech, a
lot of computer-related components within the engines themselves.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Your Lead Mechanic has to be specially trained and certified?
MR. MURRAY: Well, specifically on the hiring process they need to be a certified diesel
mechanic, have some area of pumping for fire pumps, flowing water of some sort, not
very much. What we do once we hire is that we send them to the school specifically for
those truck manufacturers that will accomplish those goals.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you. And, and, Chief, just wanted to comment on your,
your travel monies for training and special assignments. I believe you've utilized that
fund quite well which is, you know, kind of exciting at this point, because it's been
sitting for a long period of time. And I just wanted to thank you for expending those,
those funds to provide our men the opportunity for training and those who go through
special assignments. So thank you for that.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chairman Mateo. And your island has, I guess, the most
newest equipment from the three islands. Um...
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We really do take advantage of the CDBG-VICE-CHAIR MATEO: . . . (Laughter). . .Yes!
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --for Molokai and well as Lanai.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So . . .(laughter). . . Member Nishiki?
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Chief, some of your major fiscal budget items are in Water and
Lease Rental. Lease Rental would be Object Code 6235, 7-4. Can you explain the
increase of your Lease Rental?
MR. MURRAY: . . . If, if I may find out for sure--is it Subobject Code 2635 [sic]?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: 623...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: 6235.
MR. MURRAY: Okay. I just wanted to be sure that we're on, 7-4 towards the bottom, it's
under Other Costs from the Administration.
. . . We have an increase because we are renting a. . .a warehouse and office space off of
Elua Drive. And. . .that, that constitutes that rental agreement for our fire prevention and
storage needs currently.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . This is something that you need to store. . .what?
MR. MURRAY: Fire fighting supplies; turnout gear, which are the fire fighter's gear.
Everything that we have on our apparatuses, we have usually a spare backup in, in this
warehouse.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And then the Water, is that. . .something that we pay annually
to the Water Department?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it is. There's actually a monthly payment that amounts to this amount.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Chief, just I want to get an idea on
7-4, Page 7-4 under Utilities, Subobject Code 6152, an increase in cell phones. You
know, in the Fire Department, I know how important it is for communications. Did we
extend cell phones to other areas or other personnel?
MR. MURRAY: Basically the bulk of this cost has to do with our command vehicle. We pay a
monthly Telular charge so that we are, we can have that satellite direct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: To the vehicle?
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MR. MURRAY: To the vehicle.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Okay. I wanted to follow up on Council Chair
Mateo's question about the maintenance. Uh. . .do you have a repair garage now?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: At the central station?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, at Kahului -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Kahului.
MR. MURRAY: --Fire Station.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And the question was asked that, and I think you
said you outsourced some stuff because you couldn't get it done in time.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Does the Fire Department still have a relationship with
Public Works Highways garage -MR. MURRAY: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --to help out when they need to?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And is that also true for tire replacements, repairs in
the field for tires that the Tire Division from Public Works Highways goes, responds to
that or you guys contract that out?
MR. MURRAY: We contract that out.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: And our mechanics do most of the work. It's all based on a time factor,
because we have to turn that vehicle around, especially if it's an emergency response
vehicle.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Well, that's good to know. So on, it was
asked about Auto Parts and Tires and Tubes. Do you folks keep an inventory or you buy
as you go?
MR. MURRAY: We buy as we go.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. As you need it then you expend the money to
purchase -MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --those items? Okay.
. . . Okay. Thank you, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Chief, I'm going to go
through some of the, the same items on these Page 7-4 and 7-5. And then I wanted to
start out with Page 7-4, Item No. 6059 and it's Traffic Signs. And I, I note that you're
going down to zero, so what does that mean?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MURRAY: . . . Thank you for that question. As you can see, 2008 there was zero and
there was something appropriated for 2009.
. . . From my recollection, we, we don't have any traffic signs that we need specifically
other than cones that we use.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So this is a non-item then?
MR. MURRAY: Non-item.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And but, you, have you expended that
money at all?
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MR. MURRAY: . . . No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No. Okay. And then if I can move down under
your Services section, you have Other Services.. .and then below that you have
Professional Services, and then under that you have Contract Services. Do you want to
just explain to me the three different?
MR. MURRAY: . . . All right.
. . . If you notice over a span of time from Budget '08, we've made some adjustments on
those numbers. And what it is, is that we changed either the funding allocation where we
retrieve the funding from each station particular to that parts, or we have moved that
money to the mechanic shop to take care of the repairs.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . Okay. The, are all three items reflecting the
same thing then? What is considered Other Services? As 6129.
MR. MURRAY: Okay. Other Services may entail private contractors that come in to do service
or when we contract out. Either one of them we use the funding through there.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . And then your Professional Services are?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MURRAY: . . . Okay. That is for our air conditioning maintenance for that property. We
have three buildings in that property.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And the Professional Services come under that?
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. For air conditioning.
MR. MURRAY: For annual contracts, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then the next item which is 6138?
MR. MURRAY: R & M — Services and Contracts?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah.
NOTE: Silence.
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MR. MURRAY: . . . My mistake. The repair and maintenance of those items for the station is
that item there, and the Professional Services is the one for the auto mechanic when we
contract out. I had it flip-flop, I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Um. . .underneath the next
item. . .labeled Utilities, under 6120. . .you're showing zero so...
MR. MURRAY: Yes. If you look at. . .the Kahului Fire Station, this was the administrative
building, we've grouped all the electricity because it comes under one bill. It's a lot
easier to track if we just have it go to that station. So if you do peruse that area, you'll
notice that Kahului Fire Station is the largest electricity use overall, but it does take care
of our mechanic shop and our administrative building as well.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So it's being consolidated into one -MR. MURRAY: Yes, it's being consolidated -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: --one...
MR. MURRAY: --so we can track it a lot easier.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then if I can go down to the 7-5
then?
. . . Your Fire Maintenance Garage, Materials and Supplies, 6005. I'm sorry, 6022. You
got a major reduction there, so explain to me the, the gas and diesel, oil.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MURRAY: . . . Again we are trying to consolidate the stations because when they do the
drop-offs, it goes into that specific tanks and distribution unit that goes specifically for
Kahului station. But we all have cards. So now we can use the cards to track who's
doing what. Instead of having to allocate it from here, we just put it all in one
consolidated account and we can follow it a lot easier that way. And we have a monthly
reading of that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So this isn't the, the, the change in or a reduction
in consumption then?
MR. MURRAY: No. We have tried to do the reduction in consumption. We, we did this
specifically so we could manage it a whole lot better and actually be able to see the
difference. Because if we put it in three different areas we have a hard time finding out
where it is or where it's going to. So this way we, we're able to track it a lot easier.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then can you, below that under
Services again, you have Other Services and R & M - Services/Contracts. Can you
explain both of those items then? You have a, an increase on both of them, yeah, the
doubling.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MURRAY: . . . Okay. In short, there's an annual test for each fire apparatus that needs to
be conducted; and coming into the game, it wasn't done for six years. Basically, the
aerial ladders need to be tested annually. And pump testing for each pump--so it needs to
meet its rated capacity of pumping and flowing at, at any given time. Those tests had to
be conducted by an outside source. In order for us to be in compliance, we have
identified that and we know that we have to do it on a yearly basis--because none of our
mechanics, at the time, are certified to do that. So we have to contract out for that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So those are the two items for contracting
then.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . (inaudible). . . Okay. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Yes, Chair, one quick question. And it's in regards on Page 7-4
under Other Costs and it's the item 6218, Meal Allowance. I'm wondering, has
everybody gone on a diet? They used to have $100 in '08 and in '09 they have 3,180 and
for the upcoming year they have only $500. Do we provide meals? I mean what is this
about?
MR. MURRAY: Usually, what this meal allowance comes--from and a lot of our admin
personnel don't get any meal allowance--we identified that and made the adjustment
within And if they do go over--whether they traveling or we have long callouts for fires
and what have you--then that fund is used for that.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And that's enough? I mean it's such a big difference between
last year and this year.
MR. MURRAY: To be honest with you, I couldn't answer if we've expended the whole $3,180.
But we looked at it and, and we couldn't fmd it, so therefore we lowered it so that we
could use the money for things that are really, really necessary.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Do you, do you provide meals for like your commissioners?
MR. MURRAY: Only if they have to go through a working lunch and this does not constitute as
that. It's under a different.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: It's, it's in another place?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. I'm just concerned because, you know, it's such a big
reduction. I don't want to this to be an imposition on either your volunteers or on your
people.
MR. MURRAY: No. That, that's not the intent of the change.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. Just a following up on Member Baisa's
questions. Although it may seem small in terms of the meal allowance, but under Public
Safety Commission, 7-5, you have Meal Allowance I guess there was $79 for Fiscal Year
'08 and then nothing in '09, and again nothing in Fiscal Year '10. Is that what you were
referring to earlier, Chief Murray, about setting aside meals for your public safety
commissioners in the event that you go over. . .say four hours or you start going into meal
time?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: And I think what they did specifically to the year 2008, that was during the
process of hiring the chief, so they spent a lot of time doing that. And we, we only allow
for one meal annually, and that's based when we give out awards in March.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So you don't anticipate any long meetings for the
commissioners this, this year?
MR. MURRAY: No, I don't.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And I bring that up because, you know, it's tough enough
getting volunteers from our community to serve on the commissions, and if they got to
put in long hours, you know, a good example of that was the General Plan Advisory
Committee. Was, I think Member Baisa brought up that concern, these guys were putting
five, six, seven, eight hours a day and were not getting fed. And only until, you know,
Member Baisa and others had said hey, you know what, you want to keep these people
volunteering their time, we better feed them at least. And my other question relates to the
Auto Parts. . .subject area, Code 6005 on 7-5. Fiscal Year '08, $42,000; and jumped up
to 70,000 in Fiscal Year '09; and now Fiscal Year 2010, $108,895. Is this related to, we
just have a whole bunch of vehicles that are getting old and -MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --auto parts getting more expensive?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. Both, both of the above.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And, oh no, go ahead.
MR. MURRAY: And what we encountered was the Maintenance Program not being where it
should be. We had vehicles that had in excess of 30,000 miles that weren't serviced.
So. . .by identifying this, we're going to definitely have cost savings in the end. So we,
we made the adjustments and, and in order to achieve that adjustments, we have to have
that bump in, in cost.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And in terms of, you know, your purchasing, what's
the process? Do you have to go put in all these forms? Because I've heard from folks in
other departments about, you know, the process that the County goes through, we end up
paying more instead of just going, running down to the auto part store and, you know...
MR. MURRAY: At times, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
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MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Is it your goal in the future quite possibly to look at other
methods as far as obtaining auto parts to save the taxpayers some money?
MR. MURRAY: Definitely, we'd love to streamline. We need to identify that but also work
within the procurement laws. I think that's what hinders, you know, County services on,
on being able to act right away.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: You know but I don't control that. We're trying, you know, understand the
process as best as possible and do what we can to save money. We, we do everything we
can, we ask everyone to shop as if they were shopping for their own.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good. That's a good...
MR. MURRAY: So...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That's a good approach to take. And I know the procurement
laws can be sort of like a double-edge sword at the same time too, yeah?
MR. MURRAY: At times, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chief. Thank you, Chair.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina. We do have one commissioner in the
audience. Hopefully, you know, the Department feed you -COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --if you meet during lunch . . . (laughter). . . So, Members, if you have
any -MR. MURRAY: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --questions on the B account...
MR. MURRAY: Okay. I don't know if this is on the record or off the record, but if it runs into
lunch, I will buy them lunch.
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ALL: . . .(Laughter). . .
MR. MURRAY: I promise.
ALL: . . .(Laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: No, I promise
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: You know, that's Hawaiian style yeah, always feed them.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Feed the . . . (inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. If you have any more questions to the B account, Operations, if
you can forward those questions to the Chair and we'll get information back from the
Department? The last item . . . (end of tape 3B — 1:52 p.m.). . . C account is Equipment.
And it's noted on the bottom of that handout that Mr. Pablo gave us. So,
Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair. As I note here, that you're really
looking for four additional vehicles, a pickup--I guess for the mechanic shop, is that what
that is? The first, one. . .0. . .0-6 or Subobject Code. . .well, there was none, 91100 [sic],
7-6.
MR. MURRAY: Okay. If I may?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Sure.
MR. MURRAY: The pickup, the pickup truck is for the mechanic shop.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: And they'll be using those for repairs. The truck that they have is, you know, I
was just going to say that it's in badly need of repair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MR. MURRAY: But it actually shouldn't be on the road.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is just for one pickup?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. Because it's going to have a lift gate to do the tire installations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: It'll have other equipment on there like a compressor, and it'll carry tools as
well. 'Cause it's a lot heavier than, than a normal truck.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: This is more like a F-350 or something like that? Or
. . . (inaudible).. .
MR. MURRAY: Minimum Minimum is the F-350. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Minimum would be F-350?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. You know $70,000 for, I mean you look at
four-wheel pickup truck. . .some of us just balked a little bit at that. But if, if you're
saying that this is for this purpose--with the lift and all that--I can understand that. Then
the second one is for the administration, right, sports utility vehicle. This is what, another
command vehicle that'll go out when you have different events that are occurring?
MR. MURRAY: This will be actually a response vehicle for the Deputy Chief. His vehicle is in
disrepair. We have spent, since we took over, over $9,000 just trying to keep that thing
running.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I guess my question to you and to the
Deputy, $60,000, I going ask the question, why? I mean that's a lot of money for a sports
utility vehicle. So what, you putting all the bells and whistles that are necessary?
Communication, you know, maybe a good explanation -MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --just for the public to understand please?
MR. SHIMADA: Maybe I can answer that question for you. Well, this is actually. . .$10,000
less than what we spent on the vehicle for the Assistant Chief. So it is actually less, with
less bells and whistles.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Well, again I go to the question, will that be able to
do the job that, that you have that as the Assistant Fire Chief? You can do all your work
and necessary for this type of vehicle?
MR. SHIMADA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. And then the last one is, I guess, one regular
two-wheel pickup for administration. What is that particularly about, the last one?
MR. MURRAY: That vehicle will be for our, presently the Fire Command Officer--although we
spoke about having the position re-described, we're in the process of that. The car that
was in that position had in excess of 120,000 miles, and right now the transmission's out
of it 'cause it just does not work. It's in very bad shape. And that was a hand-me-down
from Fire Prevention years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. See, and, and that makes perfect sense. And I just
want the public to see that whatever we invest in equipment is well spent. I think that
was the point I was trying to get, not to say that what you're trying to ask for is improper
or not being utilized properly. But I just wanted to make sure that these numbers would
correlate in somebody's mind what this really stands for.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you for that opportunity to explain that. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Question for Mr. Pablo. You know every year we faced
with this same problem, yeah, purchasing vehicles. What is the process for the County to
purchase vehicles, you know, rather than each department go for their own, bulk purchase
to get a better rate?
MR. PABLO: Okay. For the, for the departments it's, it's actually different. For the Fire
Department and also the Police Department, they go and select the type of vehicles that
they're going to be needing for, for their particular Departments and their type of
activities. For the other General Fund programs, we have a vehicle replacement policy of
ten years, 100,000 miles. They, they, the, at the end of the year when we have the
Council-adopted Budget with all the equipment listed, we provide that information to
Public, Public Works. They have a Highway Division and they will try to do a fleet
purchase from, from that end.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Is there a comparison between hanging on to the vehicles
a little longer, looking at the maintenance dollars to delay purchase in regards to
whenever we, you know, ask for new vehicles for the County of Maui?
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MR. MURRAY: . . . Thank you, Chair. We do presently have a vehicle replacement policy. So
we anticipate the changes, the amount of miles on an average that it uses and what its
purpose is for. And we do have that. We actually were supposed to ask for three more
vehicles, but we did not. This was the worst, the one in the worst shape so we made that
adjustment.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. To this tight budget, you know, we, we need to look at all
angles in trying to save money. Chair Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, you, you kind, you kind of went where I was interested in
going. Chief, in the event we lose our TAT, you do know that these vehicles probably
going down the toilet?
MR. MURRAY: I understand.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I just want to follow up and I asked this question I
think in the last budget, and I'm not sure if the Budget Director or the Chief has
considered the comparison of purchasing and leasing, the advantages of leasing. Leasing,
you know, you lease for five years, you don't have to have upfront money, the County
would pay on an increment, less capital is involved. After five years, you return the
vehicle, you get a next one, you continue the payments. There's less maintenance costs
in the lease vehicle. And we asked I think the, when we did the golf study, I think, I
asked the consultant about that. And he says most jurisdictions and municipalities are
going into leases. So I was just wondering if you folks considered leases for--not the fire
trucks--but all support vehicles?
MR. MURRAY: I actually looked into that idea, the number one problem if we utilize that
vehicle for, because it's commercial sometimes the lease agreements don't, don't fall into
the realm for us. And if we do some modifications like drilling holes and putting wires
for our radios and what have you--and, and that probably constitutes more damage than
that they want to use to resell. So I think for us, it may be a disadvantage. If we utilize it
for strictly for administrative purposes, for clerks, then I think that would be a very
plausible idea too. And we'll, we'll do the research again.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Chief. Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Medeiros. A very good question. Maybe the
Department can take a look at their vehicle purchasing and replacement, possibility of
leasing vehicles for the County of Maui. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Chief, just another question
along the lines of vehicles. Are there hybrids that allow you to do this or have the same
performance that you require?
MR. MURRAY: Well, for, for some of our towing vehicles, we did look into that. We are
trying to be as green as possible, and what it came out to is that it was a lot more
expensive to get a hybrid vehicle, and by the time the batteries and that adjustment, it was
close to $15,000 more. If, if we're talking about a Chevy Tahoe. . .for response and
towing and what have you. . .we didn't find that the return of that $15,000 over that span
of five years would have paid off for itself. Because it was only a four mile per gallon
difference. Now if, if the gas prices go up, it may even out. But one of the worries were,
is that they could not answer the question on when do we need to replace those batteries?
And those batteries run anywhere from 3,000 to 5,000 dollars for a replacement. So we'd
be back in that same situation again. And, you know, really not being able to answer that
real question--is it really saving us money or are we having more downtime based on
that. So looking at that, we made the decision to continue to go with what we have
because it's a better product.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. I just would like to know that you're
continuously looking for opportunities that are going to be considered, you know, green
in your . . . (inaudible). . .
MR. MURRAY: Absolutely, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
- 91 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 30, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Again, Members, if you have any questions in regards to
the equipment purchase, if you could let, send your question to the Chairman and we'll
get information from the Department. Let's see.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. We're going to, Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, just for clarification, the question would be to you and/or
perhaps maybe the Director. When, when there's discrepancies in wages because in, in
this Department alone there's differences between this document and this document as
well as, as well as our vacancy list. So there's inconsistency in wages. Inconsistency
ranges from couple of thousand to 20,000-plus. So at what point is the figures we're
looking at verified from the departments?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Good question. Maybe, Budget Director, if you can, or Department
can answer that question in regards to the differences we see from the Program as well as
the-VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Details.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --the Details. . .books.
MR. PABLO: Okay. The, there's 62 programs in the County of Maui and over 2,500
employees. We rely on the department to go and, you know, provide that information,
because the departments will know what staff increases are due to each of their
employees. Whatever the department provides us, we will use that as a basis for the
Budget Details. Where we find that there's a change that might be significant, you'll see
in the far left-hand side of the Budget Details a footnote. And like this morning, some of
the questions that were raised could have been answered by the footnote. It'll say that
there was a reallocation or there was an employee who was brought on board for eight
months last year and now a full-time this year. So usually the footnotes in the Budget
Details should explain what the situation is. With regard to the vacancy list, we did
notice that there's differences between what the Department provides and what's
provided by, by the Department of Personnel Services. What we're trying to do right
now is to update that. We've got the Department of Personnel Services listening, we will
send it to the departments for verification and feeding back what they've found to the
DPS so that it could be updated. We are looking into these areas. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman. And my only worry was because
of the difference in, in the wages, should we get to a tougher road, it's going to be more
-92-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 30, 2009

difficult for us to try to decipher which numbers we actually use and which we actually
look at when we need to trim even farther. So thank you for that opportunity, Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Thank you for that observation, Chairman Mateo. Okay.
Members, we're going to go into the Training Program. . .again on the Program book, it's
on Page 9, starting on 9-5; and on the Budget Details starting on Page 7-7. Uh, Members,
the Chair is going to call for a ten-minute recess. We'll reconvene at 2:20. But before I
call the recess, I know we're not going to get through with the Fire Department today.
We brought the Fire Department forward earlier in the week so that we can cover as
many departments as possible. Tomorrow we do have the Mayor and, and Managing
Director's Office to contend with in the morning, and OCC and OCS in the afternoon.
So, Members, with that, the Chair is going to call this meeting into recess until 2:20.
This meeting is in recess. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:
RECONVENE:

2:07 p.m.
2:20 p.m.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . .(gavel). . . The Budget and Finance Committee meeting is now
reconvened.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(Inaudible). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, we're going to quit at 3:30 or maybe before
that. . .depending on what program, or before we start a new program. And the reason to
that is that we need to go to Lahaina, we do have a district meeting at 6 o'clock. So this
will give us ample time to get ourselves together and get us to West Maui. So the next
program that we're going to be reviewing is the Training Program. Again it's Page 9-5
on your Program and starting on 7-7 on the Details. At this time, the Chair would like to
call on the Chief to give us any more explanation regarding this particular program.
MR. MURRAY: Well, based on the time restraint. . .we'll -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. MURRAY: --just go ahead and take questions. Sorry . . . (laughter).. .
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. MURRAY: It is what it is.
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .

- 93 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 30, 2009

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . (Laughter). . . Okay. And again we'll go from A, B, C accounts,
yeah. Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We're under training and hazardous materials?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Training Program, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair, Chair Mateo was asking me one question. Sorry,
Chair I guess, you know, every one over here, all the various departments, I mean
personnel have, and I know they couldn't have all been eight months originally, so I'm
assuming these are step increases or just regular increases for the various personnel;
except your Clerk Typist and your Inventory Maintenance Technician are the only two I
see no change. Is that correct?
MR. MURRAY: That is correct. It is a collective bargaining agreement.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So if that's the case then no more questions, Chair
Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chief, so Salaries and Wages. . .whatever increase that we
see is basically. . .contract-negotiated agreements?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it is.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chair Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Chief, I'd like to ask one question.
Looking at the salaries. . .and because we just completed the Administration part, in the
Premium Pay which is, you know, put into the Budget for 2010 with very slight increase,
if this Premium Pay is in the Training Program, do they administer that premium pay to
the staff that qualifies for that?
MR. MURRAY: That...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Or is it administered by the administration or --94-
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MR. MURRAY: No, this...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --payroll section?
MR. MURRAY: Actually it is, all of it is administrated by Administration, but this would be
specifically for that people that are listed there. And these are the, these are the
individuals that do all of our training. And training doesn't always go from 9:00 to 5:00.
It goes in the evenings. They also do our rehab -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Right.
MR. MURRAY: --group of people. It, it constitutes quite a bit actually. They do a lot of
support services for us.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Yeah. And, and I think, you know, you know, every
component of the Fire Department is important. But training is really important in, in a
department like the Fire or the Police so that the personnel are kept up-to-date with the
fire fighting practices and technology and equipment and so forth. So it's good that, so
the Premium Pay would be strictly for this section?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair. Again we can go to the
Summary [sic], Budget Summary [sic] on 9-5. And then, Chief, could you explain to me
just on the bottom there on your Performance Measures then your section of wellness
fitness program and annual testing. Your projection is to, again they're reduced a
considerable amount so.
MR. MURRAY: . . . The problem with this projection is it is realistic. The issue with this was
initially going into 2009, we wanted to get everybody up on the program. We've had
some changes of personnel in those positions and we're trying to get them retrained to
administer those programs. This was something that was part of our strategic plan, and it
kind of took a, you know, a stop and it's, it's starting to move again. So that, that is
the. . .exact projection that we have. We wanted 100 percent. It's unattainable at this
time so we're just giving you realistic.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So then if in '08, you had attained 21, what does
21 mean?
MR. MURRAY: Twenty-one actual people. Those were actually the peer fitness trainers
specifically to the program that we're supposed to administer. We are still working on
this program.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then -MR. MURRAY: It took a lot longer than expected.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --in the current year your goal is to hit 300 then?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. Three hundred would constitute the whole Department.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And you expect to attain that?
MR. MURRAY: To be honest with you, we probably will not attain 300. . .because. . .we have
only three months left in, in this year's. . .so no, we won't be able to do that as this point.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But for what you project next year, that
you're only going to attain 75 then? These are 75 individuals then?
MR. MURRAY: Right. Seventy five individuals. We are actually, our goal is to do at least, you
know, up to 300 if at all possible. If we can do 150 that's what we're going to go after.
But we couldn't put it on here and actually look at you and tell you yeah this is how
much we're going to do. 'Cause that wasn't the realistic projection.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. No, I just wanna understand the, you
know, the discrepancy. You would normally think that you're trying to achieve the
highest level of, of efficiency, proficiency.
MR. MURRAY: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then yours is really going way down, you
know.
MR. MURRAY: Right. The projection for '09 wasn't my administration's projection. This was
something that was handed to us. And if everything turned out the way it should have
been, we may even be about 75 percent of that. But we wanted to keep it realistic and
attainable. So if we can over it, we, we will.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
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MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No questions in this area. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No, no questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . . We go to Operations.
. . . There's no change in Operations. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . So we're in the B account now, yeah?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Operations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Operations?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Presently, yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Still on Training Program on B account -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Oh, Training Program...
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah. Yeah.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Operations.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you. Thank you for that clarification.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I noticed that, yeah, we're pretty much identical as
year-to-year budget. But again for clarity, you've moved things around so that they
actually reflect the various accounts for which these various expenditures would be put
through now?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So when you have a big increase, like for example
in Medical & Safety Supplies, 6034, just one example, last, last year appropriated 17,500,
this year you're looking at 41,800. It just taking it from Peter and putting it where it
belongs in Paul's account?
MR. MURRAY: Basically, yes. That's the person who is responsible for this activity. So we
actually put in their subobject code.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And so then that reduces Medical under Hazmat part from
$39,000 to $3,000?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. In the, in the Training part, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So in other words, you all come together with the
same number, just rearranging it as for better accountability again?
MR. MURRAY: Absolutely. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman. . .Chief, how, how were you handling your Molokai, Lanai
men in terms of training for health and safety programs? Are they brought over here?
You send the trainers there to provide any kind of service for them?
MR. MURRAY: We do both.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Both?
MR. MURRAY: We do bring them in and then we also send trainers there based on, depends
on, on, on what the evolution is.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And that is on a consistent basis that you do both?
MR. MURRAY: . . . With, within the time restraints that we have. We try, we try to do it
consistently, but then there's always. . .scheduling issues, you know.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. And for the neighbor island there's, you still have enough funds
for air transportation? Because we don't really see a substantial increase.
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MR. MURRAY: No. Yes, we have enough funds. I think they were identified plus with, with
the scrutiny of travel. . .we're trying to consolidate certain things as far as training and
have the train-the-trainers. Our Training Department has put together a. . .a vast cadre of
people who can do fire instructor courses within our self. So we're trying to absorb the
costs within
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Under Operations, 7-8 for Medical
& Safety Supplies which Member Victorino touched on, I just wanted to know that these
supplies are strictly for training or are these also what you equip the hazmat trucks with?
MR. MURRAY: We do all of our apparatus with this. Every company that, that gets supplied,
gets supplied from this fund. And we have a small amount in each station that is for
other items. But this one, specifically, takes care of our First Responder Program and
everything to do with, with the medical assistance.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So where does the medical and safety supplies, or,
well, mostly the medical that may be required on a hazmat truck, they get the same
allotment of supplies?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. The medical side of it, everybody is identical.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And then Member, Council Chair Hokama [sic], Hokama
[sic], gee, he's still here . . . (laughter).. .
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mateo . . . (laughter).. .
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ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I no feel bad, then . . . (inaudible).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Your heart sore? No? . . . (laughter).. .
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh . . . (laughter). . . he touched on the -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --Airfare & Transportation. And under Operations for
Training you, you have an account for that and. . .it was increased. I, I'm hoping that the
increase is, so that, like I think you mentioned, we can train the trainers. That, do they go
to the mainland for training so that they can bring back new knowledge and technology
and skills to pass on to the personnel of the Fire Department?
MR. MURRAY: Well, just recently. . .there has been, you know, asked of each department not
to do mainland travel unless it's totally necessary. So if we have to maintain someone's
certification, then that's the justification that we use. Right now, we've been trying to
curb all travel based on the cost. But we have quite a few individuals in our Department
that, that can carry us through. . .thus, you know, through some hard times with, with
their training. But unless the National Fire Academy allows us some positions, then we,
they fully fund that, all we do is pay the per diem for travel.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MURRAY: And that's it. So only those programs, we send those people to.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So the, the programs that are subsidized by Federal funding
or by the Fire Academy that pays transportation and what else, the trainers are going to
that and other personnel as far as administration personnel?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And. . .so the policy to curb travel especially for
training is that an Administration policy, Fire Administration or?
MR. MURRAY: It's a County policy.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: County, County policy?
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MR. MURRAY: Yeah. So we're just trying to work within the guidelines. It's just a little
stricter. But a team actually takes a look at it and, and finds out if it's feasible or not.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see. Because in '09 yeah, you were budgeted in that same
Subobject Code for $4,600. Do you know what's been expended in '09 or what '08
expenditures were for this Airfare & Transportation?
MR. MURRAY: By the looks of this, they may have taken it out of another object code -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, I see.
MR. MURRAY: --for other travel. I'm not sure if it distinctly fits this program. But we've
appropriated the funding last year and now we made the adjustment because we want to
identify specifically where this comes from so it's easier for us to control and identify
and be able to answer these questions.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So the increase from '09 to 2010, which was an
increase of 11,500, the rationale behind that increase is so that--I, I having a hard time,
you know, understand that the policy is not to travel. . .but we're increasing the budget.
And my hope is that, and I support the travel part for trainers to go and update themselves
and to bring back the new knowledge for the personnel in the field. So the rationale is
what? We increased it so that we can travel more? Or did we increase it, but we can't
travel more because of a Administration policy?
MR. MURRAY: Well, through the identification of this, this specific.. .area and, and
individuals within this area, we'll be, we have, we're going to have two new people in
that area. In order to, for them to get up to par--and we'll have that in justification--we
had to identify the cost for them to attend this specialized training -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I see.
MR. MURRAY: --which is different. 'Cause sometimes they rotate out and, and we lose it on
one end, but we gain it on the operations side.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And fmally, Mr. Chairman, if I can ask this, I'm not
sure where the appropriate place is to ask--but does the Fire Department get. . .accredited
like the Police Department?
MR. MURRAY: There is a process for that and we are looking into that as it is a strategic plan
goal.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
-
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MR. MURRAY: But we know it does cost money and we, we haven't asked for something yet,
because number one, the person is not in that position. So we, we are waiting. Once we
get that person in, we'll go ahead and start looking at getting that process done, 'cause
it's going to take a while.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. It does and, but I would encourage you, Chief, to
proceed down that and pursue that. And I think one of the biggest components in
certification or accreditation is training. So that, that's really important that we keep our
training up to the highest standard so that we can meet the requirements of our
accreditation. Yeah. Thank you, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Question for Mr. Pablo. I don't know when you guys
prepared this budget, probably sometime last year. The question that I have, in regards to
Airfare & Transportation, I note that, you know, there's a lot of increases. Is that because
of airfare being so high and now it's coming down that we see big differences?
MR. PABLO: . . . I'm not certain of the answer, Chair Pontanilla, but I believe that could be
probably it. I don't have a specific answer for that right now.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. I, I think that was my other question--is
about the, the airfare having, you've got in that, both of your line items for Travel, you've
got two different sections. So these are for the two different programs, right? Right.
And then $40,000, almost, increase in Travel for 6201. You want to explain that?
. . . Well, Page 7-8.
. . . At the very bottom. . .on item 6201.
MR. MURRAY: Okay. This line item consists of . . .(end of tape 4A — 2:34 p.m.). . . our
Molokai and Lanai group as well. Everything is encompassed into this fund.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So this is for all of your, your tri-island stations
...(inaudible). . .

MR. MURRAY: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And, and you think that reflects an
accurate amount and base--`cause you started out in 52,000, yeah, in '08, then you
doubled that and then now you're adding almost, you know, another. . .close to 50,000 to
that so. . .you're ending up from 50 to 144. So it's almost. . .tripling.
MR. MURRAY: Right. We, what we tried to do is adjust the areas that we could streamline and
put the money in the area that we could utilize it more readily. And, and, you know,
hopefully travel will come back or we'll find other sources that we can have training
funded for us at least partially so that it'll offset the cost.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then just above that you've got a major
increase in cellular telephones.
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MURRAY: The Training Department has increased in personnel. . .and utilization of air
cards and what have you so that they can be hooked up to the internet to do their jobs
and, and check on the latest. . .training out. . .in the nation. We made an adjustment. If
you look at '08, it's 3,666.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: Then last year during the budget, they cut it and I think they identified that that
was the, not the thing to do.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: So re-appropriated it back to where it should be.
COUNCILMEMBER KAI-10'0HALAHALA: Okay. And then just moving up again. The next
figure there you see is a 5,000 figure in, in 2010 under your Small Equipment. So you
want to just explain that?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. The Small Equipment area for the Training Division is for the equipment
that they use specifically to training. It's exactly as the ones that are out in the field, and
they use that so that they don't tax the ones that are out in the field. And if you look at
'08, they were $17,000; and last year they had none. So we, we made that
re-appropriation so that they're able to have the proper equipment or any updates during
this next fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson? Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Uh. . .I see one interesting note in the small tools, Small
Equipment, under 500. Mr. Pablo, how do you determine minor tools from major tools?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Dollar amount or?
MR. PABLO: . . . Yeah. We, we, excuse me, we recently met with the Finance Department and
have, have actually changed this. Any, at one time any equipment above $500 would
have to be accounted for in an inventory listing. We have now changed that to, to
$1,000. So anything under $500 previously could, could be expense and anything over
500 would be listed.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Okay. Members, we'll go into the C account, Equipment.
Member Victorino, if you have any. . .questions this in regards to the pickup truck that
they want to pick up for the next fiscal year.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, I guess real simple, Chair Mateo put it in
perspective--if we got the TAT, we get 'em; if not, it's down the toilet.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Really blunt, yeah, you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, well, it's...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair Mateo?
ALL: . . . (Laughter).. .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . .(Inaudible). . .
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No, no questions.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay. I thought you was going to offer CDBG money to go pick
`em up -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and send them back to Maui.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: . . .(Inaudible). . .
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. At the end of the line here, you have no questions, so it's no
big deal . . .(laughter). . .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Members, if you do have any questions on the A, B, C
account, again send it to the Chair and we'll get response from the Department. The next
program. . .I know this going take some time. Uh...
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. . . Members, I'm going to go into the Fire Prevention Program 'cause I think when we
go to the Fire/Rescue Operations Program, we may not finish that particular program.
So. . .if you can turn to page 9-10 as well as 7-35 on your Details, we'll go into the Fire
Prevention Program. This is the last page of the handout that the Budget Director gave
us. Chief, you got any comments regarding this particular area?
MR. MURRAY: . . . No.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughter).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino, on Salaries and Wages, A account?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I guess the only question is on Fire Fighter IV, you
eliminated that position. . .on that 7-35.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Reason for eliminating that position?
MR. MURRAY: We eliminated that position -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: --and we utilized our funding from the revolving fund to fund that position.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay.
. . . That's good. Okay.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Inaudible).. .
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So the, that position wasn't "eliminated", just "redirecting funding" for
that position?
MR. MURRAY: Yes-COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay, so -MR. MURRAY: --redirected.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I stand corrected, it wasn't "eliminated", it was actually a
"redirection of funding".
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Can you verify for us the vacant positions. . .in this area?
MR. MURRAY: There are none.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Because I think that what we have and what you have are
totally different.
MR. MURRAY: . . . If you're looking on 7-35 -CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yes.
MR. MURRAY: --you see under Fire Prevention Bureau all the way at the bottom, there's some
Xs in a row. Is that the position that you're talking about?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: . . . No. I'm going from my. . .vacancies from the Personnel
Services. . .and I'm looking at Page 3 of 18.
MR. MURRAY: There are no...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Maybe you can help me by, what does FIRSPRN stand for?
SPRN and when you look at it under division.
MR. MURRAY: Oh. If you look under the division, one is suppression and...
. . . the, I don't know what the other one...
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: There's an abbreviated, it says fire, FIR; then it says SPRN,
and then I have the different positions. Is that a, found -MR. MURRAY: Okay, SPR-COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: --in your Fire and Public Safety?
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MR. MURRAY: Yes. Okay. I'm looking at another. . .spreadsheet here. It's fire suppression.
None, none of the openings are in Fire Prevention. The fire suppression openings, we
have four of 'em that are Fire Fighter Is and that was due to retirements and what have
you. And we haven't put on a recruit class yet.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chief?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Wow.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'll make it more easy. On 7-35, which is the Fire Prevention
Bureau. . .you note or we note that there is all these classifications in there. Based on
your vacancy report, is any of them--other than the last one--still vacant?
MR. MURRAY: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . So the Fire Fighter III FD-xxxx is still the vacant position?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MURRAY: . . . No. That, that position was filled.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, was already filled?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: I think the list that is most current, that I have from Department of Personnel
Services was dated 11 March 2009.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. I think we have the same vacancy report.
MR. MURRAY: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And I think Member Nishiki is alluding to again, to...
MR. MURRAY: . . . The Operations, yeah?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. The Fire/Rescue -MR. MURRAY: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Operations. That's where you have most of your vacancies right
now.
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MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
. . . Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . . No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chair Just one question on the 9-10 with
regard to your goals and objectives. I guess one of the objectives for 2010 is increasing
the amount of maintenance inspections in the community. Can you provide more
clarification, Chief, in terms of numbers to increase from. . .how much to how much and
just, and how you intend to reach that goal for the Department?
MR. MURRAY: Thank you. What that objective means, maintenance inspections is for
businesses that are already in business. They have received their Certificate of
Occupancy and now this is a re-inspection. We are trying to do as much re-inspections
within the two-year span, because a lot of things change after the inspection. And, and,
and all of this involves the public safety as well as fire fighters' safety in response to
those areas.
. . . So we do about 2,000 a year, which in the last estimate that we had there was 6,000
out there. So we're, we're not actually hitting the goal of every two years. And
there's. . .some House Bill that is on the floor right now at legislation that wants to
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change the numbers as far as time. We don't think that's a good idea, you know, in our
personal opinion. But we're going to keep it the way it is and keep striving to, to make
sure that these businesses and occupancies are safe for our people.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you. And now one last clarification. On your
Performance Measures, I notice a decrease on number of plans reviewed from 2,100 in
FY '09 down to 1,050 for FY '10. Is that in line with you earlier comments about trying
to reach I guess something that's more realistic in terms of numbers?
MR. MURRAY: There's two reasons for that. The, the numbers that are projected here are
almost exact amounts. And it is due the downturn of construction and permits and
businesses that, that are out there now. So we hope that we're wrong on this number, but
we're trying to keep it as close to what it may be as possible so that we can project and
readjust in areas that we need to jump on.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Chief. Thank you, Chair
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
. . . Members, you guys. . .okay . . . (laughter). . . You guys have any questions on the C
account?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: C account.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: C account.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I don't think you guys have any.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No more.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So again, Members, if you have . . .(laughter). . . any questions on the
B and, A and B accounts please forward it to the Chair and we'll ask the Department to
give us that information. There's no equipment on the C account. So, Members, we'll go
into the next item and I think this is the one that we're going to spend some time, the rest
of the time and probably some time tomorrow morning. And this is the Fire/Rescue
Operations Program for the Department. And, Members, you know, this is the largest
program for the Department. Right now, it's budgeted for $23,375,000. So we'll begin
on Page 9-8 of the Program and 7-11 of the Details. And, Members, it goes by fire
stations. So we'll take fire station, you know, each of the fire stations as we go along in
regards to this particular program. So, Chief, you got any opening comments regarding
this?
-
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MR. MURRAY: . . . No. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So, Members, we go into the Wailuku Fire Station on the
A account.
. . . Member Victorino, do you have any questions on the Wailuku Fire Station? And this
is on Page, starting on Page 7-11.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The only question, yeah 7-11, yeah. The only question I
have as far as the Wailuku Station is there's one Fire Fighter Subobject Code FD-0082.
And of all the, I saw the, the normal increases, but this one went up 13 percent from 51 to
58. Is that some kind of step increase? Or what, what caused that one--and that's the
only one, you know, the rest all...
MR. MURRAY: That was a step increase based on. . .the person's longevity -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: --and as well as the. . .salary increase.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. Thank you. That, that's fair enough for me.
Thank you. Thank you, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. Chairman, I don't have any questions, but I. . .just to
help out as the Budget Director mentioned, that most of the questions about salaries can
be answered with the footnotes on the left column that are described. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No questions, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. We'll go into the B account. Members, you got to
flip your pages yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, we got to go to B now.
. . . Got it.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: It's on Page 7-25.
. . . Wailuku Fire Station.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Uh-huh.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Actually, everything is almost identical from the previous
year, so I have no questions in that area.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just one question. Chief, Wailuku
at one time used to be the, the largest staffed station of all the stations because they would
feed the other stations where there was personnel missing either for vacation, sick leave,
whatever. Does, does Wailuku still do that or do they have a normal staff as far as
numbers?
MR. MURRAY: They have a normal staff.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So where do the replacements come from now?
MR. MURRAY: Replacements come from the companies that have full staffing during that
work shift-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: --and the Battalion Chief will assign someone in the closest district so that we
can get that turnaround time and minimize our holdback.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: So they have the authority to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you for that response, Chief. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Kaho'ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Thank you, Chair Chief, on Page 7-25 at the
very top there you have Travel Out-Of-District (Molokai/Lanai/Hana) for 25,000,
increase from 20. Now explain this travel as opposed to the travel that we talked about
earlier that ...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Chief?
MR. MURRAY: . . . This is also another funding that we can use for that outside district travel
for different personnel. Like if we have our Training Bureau, we want it to come under
that specific item. And then if this one, if we can use it for our line personnel, then we,
we do that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So this would be a totally different category of
travel for those, for the three islands, then?
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MR. MURRAY: These are specifically for the 24-hour personnel during relocation. In case we
have a shortage on Lanai or Molokai, we can fly these people at a moment's notice. . .for
the whole year. So we had to keep that separate. It's, it's a lot easier to track.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then again when you said that you
were consolidating all of your utilities and moving, so Wailuku is a stand-alone then in
this regard?
MR. MURRAY: Each station here is a stand-alone except for Kahului.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. No further questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just a curious, curious question. You know fire fighters are
famous for their cooking-UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . .(Laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --and we often hear about firehouse cookout, cookbooks and
firehouse contests of cooking. And I'm curious, I noticed that, you know, the meal
allowance for the various stations tends to vary with the amount of people. Is there a
budget amount that you set aside for your, for per person?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, there is. Currently, it's $8 per person per day. And come July 1 St, it'll be
8.50.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And so...
MR. MURRAY: So and this is a contractual issue.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I see. So this is under union contract?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: And you all have to do your shopping, cooking and feed
everybody with what you have?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: You must be very good budget people . . . (laughter).. .
MR. MURRAY: They try. If not, they'll hear it. So -COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughter). . . A lot of...
MR. MURRAY: --the person shopping has to be really frugal.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: I, I notice, and, and good meal planners. But it's, it's really
interesting the tradition of firehouse cooking. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair. You know, Mr. Chairman, just looking
through all the, the various fire stations, it would seem most everything seems to be flat
except maybe adjustments for Uniform Allowances. Just a suggestion, maybe, as a way
to expedite things--if we have any questions on any of the stations, then maybe we can
submit them in writing and then that way we can just move on. 'Cause I, I presume,
Mr. Chair, you wanted to go through each station for questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And, and some of the stations you do have some vacancies that
need to be filled. And I think Member Nishiki had questions in regards to -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --those vacancies.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Yeah. I was, I guess for me I was just looking at the B
account. So, but yeah, anyway.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I, I appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. All right. Thank you. No questions on the B account
for Wailuku.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And as far as the Wailuku Station, there's no equipment
that's being requested at this time. So we go into the Paia. . .Paia Fire Station. And,
Chief, if you can note, you know, on the vacancy report that we got from Personnel -MR. MURRAY: Yes?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: --it also states the, the vacancies for those location. So, Members, if
you look at location, in this case here for Paia, we do have one vacancy that is, well it's a
transfer according to this. So, but anyway if the Chief can explain.
MR. MURRAY: Okay. Thank you, Chair. On the Paia Fire Station, we have one vacancy
there, and that's specific to that Fire Department number that's assigned to that station,
that watch. And. . .the person that was there transferred to another station that had a
vacancy. So on all of the suppression areas which you'll see, those are for Fire Fighter I
positions and we have four of them open in the entire County.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Victorino, you got any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala? Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And again, you know, as stated by Member Molina, the B
account is almost the same or is the same from previous years. Member Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. But, you know, on the B account I, I do have one
question for the Department and this will come up in other ones. And so when we were
at Wailuku, I saw that Utility, just go to Electricity 6120, went up from 2008 to 24,000 in
2009, go up couple thousand dollars increase. But then when I go to. . .Paia. . .the
buggah it went from 20,300 for that year of 2008 down to 17,509, I mean and utility,
electricity costs have gone up. So what have we done special? And I, I notice that with
almost every fire station except maybe two it went the opposite way, it went down. So,
you know, maybe there's a secret out here that we could pass on to the various
departments and even for myself, 'cause I like to know how to cut my electricity bill
down too. So is there a reason why all of these went down pretty much across the board?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chief?
MR. MURRAY: . . . Okay. Specifically to Paia.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Let's stay with Paia.
MR. MURRAY: Let's stay with Paia.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . (Inaudible).. .
MR. MURRAY: There, there are going to be some adjustments throughout all the, all the
stations. One, one of the issues and it, and it's not going to be that high as cost is--we've
instituted a conservation plan, along with the Mayor's conservation plan.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: The other thing specifically to Paia is that we have a cascade system that does
fill air bottles for us with ambient air. We haven't, we haven't run that machine in a
while, and that consumes a lot of electricity. But we are in the process of building a
separate area, and we have a brand new machine that is more efficient that will be placed
in that area. So next year, you may see a jump in that. But, specifically for Paia, that is
the reason why that one went down. We're not utilizing that 'cause we, we have a
cascade system that fills air bottles in Wailea.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So everything is sent down to Wailea?
MR. MURRAY: And we also received an Air/Light vehicle that is also a mobile unit --
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. MURRAY: --that can do that on scene, so we're able to turn those things around really
quick.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: We saw that in Lahaina.
MR. MURRAY: Yes. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So, so, so, okay. So, so that's why, but again you've
confused me by saying that you think next year in 2010 it may go up a little.
MR. MURRAY: It may or may not.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh, okay. If you're going to, you're comfortable, 'cause
the worst thing you do is make a budget that...
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: . . . and then you come up for a budget amendment. I
guess these will be so small that you wouldn't run, run, run, run, run that again?
MR. MURRAY: Well nothing is too small that, that we need to overlook.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: But we, we try to make the adjustments as best as we can so we're able to track
it and we know exactly where that dollar is spent.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chief.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, any more questions? If not we go to. . .Lahaina Fire Station
on the A account. Anyone got any questions on that?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: There's no vacancies in the Lahaina area that I can see. If not, we go
to the B account for Lahaina. If any questions? Members, you got questions?
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair'? Same question again. And if you can maybe
explain Lahaina with the electricity 'cause that one went down almost 14,000 which
again is great, but is that the same premise as you've stated earlier about the air bottles,
et cetera?
MR. MURRAY: No, not in that case.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: I believe that we are actually. . .being able to pinpoint the specific amounts of
costs. You know as it was done in 2008 and I cannot answer for that, we made the
adjustments to how it, how it is exactly. So we're trying to keep it real close so we can
follow it. And then it gives us a measurable, you know, gauge so that we're able to
know, know, know that the conservation efforts are working.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chief. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding Lahaina?
Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just wanted to find out, I know you're really trying to be
faithful about adhering as close as you can to what the actual expenses are. But I know
last time nobody anticipated that the electric costs were going to sail . . .(laughter). . .
through the roof as they did because fuel costs went up. Now if that happens again and
we get, all get caught in this position, do you have any funds which you would be able to
reallocate to make up for that difference or budget shortfall from any other funds or any
other source?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chief?
MR. MURRAY: Thank you for that question. I hope it doesn't happen again because. . .you
know, our budget currently suffered dearly because of, of the increases that we had over
this past year. And what we would have to do is make the adjustments internally to see if
we could cover those. We've tried everything possible within our power to adjust the
false alarm runs, all of those things. We, we took a proactive approach and actually
changed some of the response cards on how we respond and, and not having three
vehicles versus two or one based on the call for that area and district. Because we had a
lot of false calls that were bringing on two to three extra units for no reason. So the
initial response is always there and we, we made some adjustments there. I, I can't
answer -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Laughter).. .
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MR. MURRAY: --that so specifically but I, I know we are trying to track it so we can get a
better gauge for you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and my concern and the reason why I'm asking
is because I know you're trying to play it very close to the vest . . . (laughter). . . Because
if our budget or if your budget is accurate then it gives us a better idea of what we're
actually facing, and then maybe another department may be able to use some of that
funding that you would not have tied up by over-budgeting for a particular item. So I, I
appreciate . . .(laughter). . . that.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just don't want you guys to get cut short though either so.
MR. MURRAY: You know I really wish we had an ability to have a fund that was able to cover
those, those unforeseen situations. But in this time, we need to be really prudent and
straight-forward to you, you know, and be able to answer that, that question and then...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Maybe you can take Member Baisa's suggestion and do
some chili sales . . .(laughter). . .
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. MURRAY: We, we might end up doing that and a bake sale.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah . . . (laughter). . . The, the other thing is that, you know,
because I never know and I mean I'm just looking at the numbers here that you've got
down and you're just projecting--but I know a while ago there was a lot of problems with
the, you know, the Lahaina Station needing repairs here and repairs there. So are we at
least okay with the maintenance and, you know, a lot of the problems that we were
having with the Lahaina Station? Just so that it's safe and secure and that the fellows
there are not being put in a situation where, you know, there's mold or, you know, leaks
and other things that are plaguing the Department.
MR. MURRAY: The Lahaina Station is a challenge in itself as, as you are well aware of. It, it's
something that we constantly have to stay on top of. You know we can't answer for the
decisions that were made on maintenance or the safety or any other situation that was out
in Lahaina. But we are definitely aware of it, and I can tell you for sure that the Deputy
Chief is on it because that was his station. So he knows the ins and outs of, of what's
going on there. And we're trying to stay on top of it with the money that we have. So...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and because I know this is mostly, you know,
you just, your operations budget and CIP would be in another part, so -- 120 -
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MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --you know, I, I know things are tight but if there's any of the
monies that can be used for Capital Improvement Projects or re-roofing or anything
when, when you're looking . . .(laughter). . . in that area I certainly would appreciate.
And I know that all the fellows would in Lahaina. Because I just feel really badly
because they have to make do and they've been doing that for a number of years so.
MR. MURRAY: I agree. Thank, thank you for your concern, I really appreciate it. And we'll
defmitely look at it in the CIP process.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Johnson. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No more questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. There's no equipment requirement for . . . (end of tape 4B
— 3:05 p.m). . . we're going to Molokai Fire Station. Chair doesn't see any expansion or
vacancy for that Molokai Fire Station. I, I'm assuming it's all for the, how many fire
stations we got over there, three?
MR. MURRAY: . . . Pardon me?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Three fire stations on Molokai?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Chairman Mateo, question?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Chairman, nothing on, on A but if we can expand it, can we?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Expand?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Ask questions about the, the stations themselves?
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll do Kaunakakai first.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: But I have no, well, Kaunakakai is a whole, you know, that's paradise,
it's happening. There is Pukoo.
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: And Pukoo the facility itself is perhaps this, one of the County's oldest
facilities because it's an old hospital.
MR. MURRAY: Right.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: So can you give us an update on the status of Pukoo?
MR. MURRAY: Pukoo is actually a State-owned -VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: --property, yeah. What we would really want is to have some County property
up, up in a higher location to stay out of the inundation zone for hurricanes and tsunamis.
That is one of our goals and, and I don't know how long it's going to take us to achieve
it. But we are definitely actively looking into some property in that area and hopefully
during this time somebody might, you know, feel the need to donate something to us or
maybe the County has something. I know there is a property near the school, but there's
some issues with burial grounds and what have you. So we're trying to stay away from
those issues 'cause we don't want it to become an issue. But we do realize that that area
needs to have a permanent and, and new, safe fire station for the men. And, and we
realize that. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Has the, the staffing, is staffing still an issue at Pukoo?
MR. MURRAY: You know initially with, with the budget process, that was on. . .that was one
of the first expansion positions that we had. And. . .you know, basically they asked if we
can limit the expansion positions, then that's what we would want to see. And we, we
eliminated all of it. You know, Pukoo was on, on the top. And we realize that they are
all stand-alone with two personnel and, you know, anywhere from 40 to 35 minutes for
the next in, responding unit and we realize that. But based on the time that we are in we,
we had to make that, that, that cut.
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VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Yeah. That, that call though, that does not jeopardize the fire fighters
in terms of response?
MR. MURRAY: . . . You know I think they've been jeopardized from day one, you know, with
only having two. I think when the economy permits, I'm all for having them as full
manned, because they're in a rugged terrain, there are long, long response times from the
next incoming unit. I don't, it, it's one of those priorities things, and not to say that they
don't have priority, but. . .that comes those tough decisions, you know. Honestly. . .we
wanted to say that it's not going to happen this year, but it will always be on our radar.
You know if we see a light at the end of the tunnel, that, that'll defmitely be brought up
for that community.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Chief, I was looking at your strat plan. Your strat plan
doesn't identify Pukoo and the needs for that community.
. . . Maybe that's something that need to be added, if that's a high priority. If we want to
get off the State land, that it should be in your strat plan and, and proper planning should
be done.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you, Chair. That strategic plan was. . finished in 2007. . .and we really
need to revisit that--whether we'll have the funding to go through the appropriate
measures as we've done in the past or we might do it within our means of achieving, you
know, that goal. But I think a lot of the previous administration's goals and objectives
need be, to be revamped based on our times. And, and that's something that we want to
look into and we are going to look into but, but this season has been really tough for us
and we haven't been able to spend the time. But we will in the future. So as soon as we
devise our new plan, we will definitely get a copy to you for your perusal and, and any of
your feedback that you may have throughout the year. So please be patient with us on
that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: We, we still on Molokai? I mean, yeah.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So. . .does Pukoo get a separate funding or I'm not
sure if I'm...
MR. MURRAY: No. It's, it's encompassed in Molokai.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: The Kaunakakai Station. They're under the jurisdiction of Kaunakakai Fire
Station.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, yeah, under Kaunakakai?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And Hoolehua gets a separate...
MR. MURRAY: Stand-alone, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Stand-alone. Okay. Thank you.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. According to this, you have one equipment, Molokai Fire
Station, utility truck, 4-wheel drive.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Four-wheel drive.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . 7-34.
MR. MURRAY: Thirty-four.
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Any question, Members, in regards to the equipment request?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just one question. We're looking at the utility truck,
4-wheel drive, right?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And it just says Molokai Fire Station. So it goes to the
Kaunakakai Fire Station?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Hoolehua.
MR. MURRAY: Hoolehua.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, Hoolehua has this one?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So it's used strictly by Hoolehua and not shared with
Molokai, I mean with Kaunakakai or Pukoo?
MR. MURRAY: It'll be assigned to Hoolehua and, and in very minimal times they might have
to share it with, with a Chief that shows up to the island that, that needs to do a command
and control of fires or rescues or what have you. But it's their utility vehicle, specifically
to do the rescues on that island and pull the jet ski and tow it to Moomomi Bay or
anything on the west end.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. Okay. Thank you, Chief. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding Molokai? Seeing
none, we go to Makawao Fire Station. This time, I'll start with Mr. Molina.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No. No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No. No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Mr. Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. For Salaries and Wages we go to the B account.
Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Nope. No questions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: . . . Pass, Chair.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
. . . And then on the C account, there's no equipment being requested. Members, any
questions for Molokai [sic], Makawao Fire Station?
. . . None? Okay. We go to Kihei Fire Station.
. . . Again, Chief, the, the increase is, basically is towards like salary increases based on
contract?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, sir.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Let's see. . .there's no expansion for Kihei.
Member Mateo, questions?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
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COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No, Chair. Very minimal increases.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. Very, very small.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. There's one equipment.. .that is being requested,
emergency generator. And, and, Chief, you can expound on that?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. For the Kihei Fire Station, we have a generator that is inoperable
60 percent of the time.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. MURRAY: And it was there since that station was built, and all we're asking for is a
replacement so that that station can be up and running during power outages or any type
of other emergencies.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for that? Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Chief, so this emergency generator stays at the
station or is it a portable for field use?
MR. MURRAY: It's a static generator for the station itself to run their operations.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chief. Mahalo, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, next fire station is Lanai Fire Station. Seeing
none for expansion. Let's see...
. . . Member Kaho'ohalahala, questions. . .on the A account?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: None. None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Pass.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Again on the B account very minimal. Any questions,
Members?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO`OHALAHALA: Uh...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, yeah.
. . . You know the question only has to do with the proposed CIP, so is that something
that's appropriate to ask here for the Lanai Station?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll come back to CIPs. . .probably tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: We'll catch the Fire/Rescue Operations and then we'll go into CIPs.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then I'll pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Members, any questions regarding Lanai Fire Station? Okay.
We go to...
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. . . Hana Fire Station. Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No questions on the A account.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: On the B account, Member Medeiros, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Just to ask and maybe this drifts
back to the A account . . . (laughter). . . But is the station fully staffed?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And how many member crews are there?
MR. MURRAY: Five men.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Five-member crew?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And. . .as far as the Operations, the B account. . .is
there any funding, if, if a fire fighter gets assigned to the station and he doesn't volunteer
to go there, is there a housing or a per diem or a mileage fee for that fire fighter?
MR. MURRAY: We, we do add two extra meals for them because that, that station is
considered a remote station—just like Lanai--so they're on for three days straight, 72
hours, and off for six days.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So a fire fighter that doesn't necessarily live there but
commutes there for the three working days, is there any mileage for that fire fighter or
any other kind of fees awarded him'?
MR. MURRAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No?
MR. MURRAY: Only if they have to relocate to anther station for manpower shortage
someplace else which we rarely do, because they're a stand-alone--basically 2 hours, 21/2,
3 hours before the next incoming unit by road. We leave them at full staff at, at all
possible.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And. . .so. . .when training is done at the Hana Fire
Station, do the trainers from Kahului go in or do the fire fighters come out?
MR. MURRAY: We do both.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: You do both?
MR. MURRAY: It all, it's all based on, on the timing, the training, the type of training and how
long. If we can, we'll try to get them on their days off and they come out.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: It all depends on what, what tools they have to work with.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. And so supplies for that station in Hana -MR. MURRAY: Uh-huh?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --that's delivered by whom?
MR. MURRAY: By our personnel.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: From. . .central?
MR. MURRAY: Support, support services, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. Thank you, Chief. Mahalo, Mr. Chair
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions in regards to the B account
for Hana?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes, Chair
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Under your Budget Details, item
6022. . .you got quite a change in amount there. You want to explain that from the. . .'08
to '09? You have an increase of over $4,500 yeah.
. . . It's under...
MR. MURRAY: The. . .6022?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: 6022, right.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Gasoline, Diesel and Oil.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: On, on Page 7-30.
MR. MURRAY: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. MURRAY: Uh. . .there is a slight, not "slight", but a large boost from '08 to '09. And
again all we're trying to do is to allocate the funds to the specific area so we can keep
track.
. . . And, and. . .we saw that -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. So...
MR. MURRAY: --this would be appropriate for that period of time. If we need to make
adjustments, then we will.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No, is, is 6023 then.
MR. MURRAY: Oh, 6023?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, is an adjustment of 60...are you moving it
to 6022?
NOTE: Silence.

MR. MURRAY: . . . Well. . .it looks like it on numbers, yeah? But I cannot answer for, for that
appropriation during 2008 and what happened. But for 2009, we had a zero. So basically
we'll take whatever from the mechanic shop if we have to. . .and send it to, to that
location.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So the difference between those two items is
what?
NOTE: Silence.

CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Maybe Budget Director can help on this one here. I, I note it's an
interfund transfer . . . (laughter). . . I, I know we had some problems regarding fuel back
in 2008 that we supplemented the various departments in regards to fuel costs.
MR. PABLO: Thank you, Chair I'm, I'm not certain how it works in the, with the Fire
Department, but it looks like if you combine those two amounts--6022 and 6023, they're
roughly the same amount in total for each year, roughly around $5,000. It could have
been the way they were accounting for it. At one time, they were charging it to account
6023, and now it's charged against 6022.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. But they, in your view then it's the same,
same thing, yeah?
MR. PABLO: It appears to be so because the amounts are roughly the same, roughly around
5,000.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. And then...
MR. PABLO: In the combined amount.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then I was looking at your Utilities under
Hana, 6120 and you're showing a major decrease. Is that, is that...
. . . Is that correct?
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NOTE: Silence.

MR. MURRAY: . . . Thank you.
. . . Based on the projections of this year. . .'09, going into '10, we found that it is very
close to this amount. So not sure what was happening in '08, I cannot answer that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions regarding the B account for
Hana?
. . . If not, there's no equipment request. So we go to Napili Fire Station.
. . . There is. . .one vacancy for the fire station. Member Johnson, if you got any
questions...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No...
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . on the A account?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I don't really, but I just wondered if there were any. . .you
know, any things there that, because I see, I guess it's the operating budget, it's just about
the same. So is there, is there anything that you asked for that you didn't get
. . .(laughter). . . for Napili Station?
MR. MURRAY: No. No, we did not.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So you're just tried to keep it as level as you could?
MR. MURRAY: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And that one is in pretty good shape? That one is not in a
state of disrepair?
MR. MURRAY: No, that one's pretty good shape.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Can you explain the vacancy for that fire station?
That's -MR. MURRAY: Okay-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --Fire Fighter I.
MR. MURRAY: Okay. Napili Station, Fire Fighter I vacancy for Fire Suppression. . .was a
transfer as well. They moved to another position that was open in, within the
Department, and that was left vacant and nobody else at this time is going. . .shows
interest of working at that station in that position.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: So you intend to fill that position?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, as soon as we can get a recruit class, and. . .5'A months after that, then
they'll be working there.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. So we go to the B account, Operations. Again, looking at
the Department for, well looking at Napili, it's almost flat. Member Johnson, any
questions to the B account?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: None.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa?
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And there's one fire. . .mini pumper. Chief, can you
explain the request for the mini pumper?
MR. MURRAY: On the request for that mini pumper, I'm going to let Deputy Chief Shimada
answer that question.
MR. SHIMADA: The mini pumper is to gain access into the areas that we getting problems
with, specifically Kahakuloa. To take the big pumper all the way in there on a fire or any
type of emergency is very dangerous.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: . . . Thank you. Member Johnson, question?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And is this also able to be used--`cause I know in
Lahaina and Napili we have people parked on both sides of the road sometimes and it's
really narrow. Would that also have an easier passage into some of the areas when you
got people parked in the way?
MR. SHIMADA: Yes. And it's also going to cut down response times, especially on the
medicals. It's much easier to maneuver in and out of the tight neighborhoods with a
smaller vehicle.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. 'Cause I know that's other neighborhoods as well, but
that is really a concern, because I know you don't want to go smashing your vehicles
. . . (laughter). . . as well as other people's vehicles. But, you know, it just seems that
people just, they have no place to park, so they park on both sides of the street. So I, I'm
glad that at least we have a skinny truck that will . . .(laughter). . . be able to go down
some of these narrow roadways now.
MR. SHIMADA: Yes, and it also saves on wear and tear on our larger trucks. It's going to help
us extend the life of the larger, more expensive trucks.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and is it a little bit more economic on fuel as well?
MR. SHIMADA: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Great. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: No question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to ask about the mini
pumpers, because I was just talking to Battalion Chief there. . .or Assistant Chief, what is
it? . . .(laughter). . . Assistant, I'm sorry . . .(laughter). . . Do, will these mini pumpers
come with undercarriage sprayers for brushfires?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chief?
MR. CORDEIRO: They won't have undercarriage sprayers, but they will be CAF. . .oh, not
"CAF", will have foam proportioners on them. So increase the, the amount of water we
carry by allowing us to use foam, less runoff, more penetration, and it's about three times
amount of water will expand with it. So with the CAF system and the ability to get into
the tight areas, they'll do the job versus that front sprays.
- 137 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 30, 2009

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I'm glad to see the Department going back to mini
pumpers, because, you know, when I was in the Department, every station had a mini
pumper, but they also had undercarriage sprayers that could go to brushfires much
quicker than the big engine and pretty much suppress the fire if it just started and not
require the large truck to respond. And I think as Deputy Chief said, you get there
quicker, you get through narrow spots, you know. It was just a really good piece of
equipment to have. So I'm glad the Department is starting to go back to that. And I just
want to ask a question on any of the trucks, but especially the mini pumper. . .are fire
fighters allowed to ride the back deck? Or not anymore? Not anymore?
MR. MURRAY: Not anymore. It's against . . . (inaudible). . . regulations.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Is that, is that a national -MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --standard and policy?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, national.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So if a mini pumper responds, it's only with two
people?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. And, and the larger vehicle will be behind, based on the call, and then
they'll be able to hop on or walk in.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: This is an area that didn't have a vehicle and now does.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MURRAY: So that's the premise of that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Yeah. Because, you know, the mini pumpers used
to respond to medical assist, too, and we had four people on that truck, two in the back.
And so, yeah, you know, sometimes we rode from Paia all the way to Keanae on the back
so that was a long ride, you know . . . (laughter).. .
MR. MURRAY: I would imagine
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . .(Laughter). . . But thank you for that information.
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MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chair Mateo?
VICE-CHAIR MATEO: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Baisa? Okay. Thank you. Members, we got one more
operations, operation to review--and that's Hazmat Response Operations. Again in this
area here, we do have four vacancies. And prior to calling any of the Members for
questions on A, B and C account, just want to have the Chief respond in regards to those
vacancies.
MR. MURRAY: Okay. The Fire Hazmat Division, the three Fire Fighter Its are vacancies on a
24-hour shift work, and the Fire Fighter III is our medical officer. The Fire Fighter II list
has just come out. We will be interviewing this week for those positions, and we'll be
having promotions as soon as the paperwork can get through.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: And similar to Fire Fighter III?
MR. MURRAY: Fire Fighter III is on hold for administrative decisions.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo, question? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: . . . So your, your engineer that used to be called Engineer
is that a Fire Fighter what now?
MR. MURRAY: Three.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Three? I see. Okay. And. . .you said you prepared for a
class of recruits?
- 139 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 30, 2009

MR. MURRAY: We, we are. . .with, with the promotions that we have in the upper positions,
once that takes place, then we'll be able to fill the class that is very reasonable for our,
our Training Department to get done in 51/2 months.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Because I think you recently had a fire fighter
exam?
MR. MURRAY: Yes, we did.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So you had people qualified to be on that list already?
MR. MURRAY: Yeah. We already, we have two lists actually. That list is not done yet. . .so
we're not sure what the timeline is for that.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MURRAY: But we do have a current list that is out right now.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Chief.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Pass.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions on the B account?
. . . Seeing none, there's no equipment request for this Hazmat team. The last item I have
is the helicopter service and this is Contractual Service in the amount of $1 million. And,
Chief, you can give us a brief explanation on this?
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MR. MURRAY: Okay. This one I'll take a few minutes to talk about.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: . . . (Laughter).. .
MR. MURRAY: The, the helicopter contract is for us to have that helicopter on standby at our
disposal for various. . .uses. Brushfires are one, rescues are another. It has proven
instrumental in many, many lifesaving situations and also in brushfire situations. So I,
I really ask that you. . .take a look at this and, and. . .and really think about it, because
that's, that's a portion of our response that is. . .I, I really can't put into words on how
effective it is. It is just instrumental for the people, you know, that visit as well as the
people, our citizens. And. . .so thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Mateo, question? Member Nishiki?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. How many personnel can ride the
helicopter at one time?
MR. MURRAY: Three fire, one pilot.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Does the helicopter ever get used for medical assist
and I'm not talking about rescue. But if, you know, the air ambulance helicopter or Coast
Guard is not available do, does our Fire Department helicopter do any medical transfers
from scene to medical facility?
MR. MURRAY: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No?
MR. MURRAY: Technically it can only do a point A to point B, and the point B will have to be
the nearest accessible area for an ambulance. They are the contract that takes care of
transport. So we, we get them out of harms way and regardless of where it is, wherever
the most, best means for that ambulance to get and the safest, we'll get that person to that,
that area.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So you transport it to the location where the ambulance can
access which is the closest location you can fmd?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And then the ambulance transfer that person to the medical
facility?
MR. MURRAY: Yes. Or we've also done that with Medivac where we fly to their landing
zone, which is a lot larger than ours. We'll get them from point A to point B to that
landing zone, and they'll be able to take it from there.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Chief. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
MR. MURRAY: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yeah. Who do we contract this with?
MR. MURRAY: Right now, as we speak, it's Windward Aviation.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: So there, and the, the helicopter is based at the
fire station itself?
MR. MURRAY: Not anymore, it's at the Kahului Airport and, many reasons but the top two
were safety of those power lines and the wind conditions, you know, Kahului is always
blowing. And when we come in with a full load or going out with a full load, it's very
dangerous for our people to be in there as well as the surrounding public; and the other
thing was security. We had some issues with security. . .so now it's in a secured area at
the airport. The only thing is we have sometimes a little lag in response time between the
Kahului Fire Station, where rescue is housed, to the airport. And if there's any reason
why rescue is out, we have the helicopter meet them at the scene or at a pickup point. So
we're trying to be really. . .aware of response times and try to be flexible and safe at the
same time.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The contract is, it goes out for. . .you, it -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: For bid?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --for bid?
MR. MURRAY: It's in the process right now. Yeah, we're coming up for a, a bid.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Good. So you have your current contract
with Windward you said?
MR. MURRAY: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And then it's up for bid -MR. MURRAY: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --is it an annual thing?
MR. MURRAY: Chief, could you?
MR. CORDEIRO: If I may? It's, it's based annually with a three year extension. So we can do
it, it actually comes out to a four-year contract with the options for us or the County, if it
becomes too excessive or expensive, to cancel. But so far it, it proven to be the most
. . . (end of tape 5A — 3:36 p.m). . . operate the helicopter.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: And it's the most competitive bid in your view?
MR. CORDEIRO: Competitive bid?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The most competitive bid . . . (inaudible). . .
MR. CORDEIRO: Yeah. It goes out it, it's posted, it's put in the newspaper and open for
competitive bid.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: How many different. . .responses did you get?
MR. CORDEIRO: I think the last one, we only had two.
MR. MURRAY: There's not very many vendors that have the capabilities of how the contract is
written. So they have to always supply us with, with, with a helicopter and a pilot and a
backup helicopter if that thing goes down longer than an hour. 'Cause it changes our
whole operational scheme. And not very many vendors are able to pull that off. And,
and there's also some flight time requirements with actually having long line experience
for the helicopter pilots--which is pretty vast. So they're highly qualified and very safe.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Member Molina? Members, that's all we have in regards to that
particular program. Tomorrow, we're going to cover with the Fire Department. . .the, the
grants that they receive and also the CIP projects that they need to do. . .under their
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requirements. Members, tonight we meet at 6:30, West Maui District meeting at Lahaina
Civic Center. So with that, the meeting of the Budget and Finance Committee is now
adjourned. .(gavel). . .

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.
ADJOURN: 3:38 p.m.
APPROVED:

JOS PH PONTANILLA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
bf:min:090330
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